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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

KOLKATA, NEW DELHI

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
THE MEMBERS OF
BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED

Ileport on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of I\,I/s BALLY JUTE COMPANY
LIMITED ("the company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 20'23, the
statement of Profit and Loss, and the statement of Cash Flow and notes to the fhancial
statements, for the year ended 3l March 2023, including a su[unary of significant accounfing
policies and other explanatory information.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a) Attention is invited to Nofu No. 1 Poirtt (Xl)(b) of statement of significant
Accounting Policies regarding Gratuity provided as an expenses in the statement of
Profit and Loss in the year in which the payment for the same has been made, which
constitutes a departure from the Accounting Standard 15 - " Employee Benefits "
including disclosure requirement under the said standard. The impact of the same in
the Financial Statements is disclosed in Note No. 25

b) Attention is invited to Note No. 30 of the financial Statements regarding preparation
of financial statements as per Accounting Standard (AS) issued by ICAI instead of
Ind AS on account of an application made to Stock Exchange for delisting of shares.
The impact of the same, if any, on the reported financials remains unascertained.

We conductecl our audit in accordance with the Stanclards on Aucliting (SAs) specified
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further describec{ in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accorc-lance with the Code of
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In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
rs, except for the possible effect of matter described in the basis for qualified opitriotr
sectiotr of our report, tte aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,

2023, and Profit and its cash flow for the year endecl on that date.



I
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Ac! 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient ancl appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Company's Annual Return
but does not include the Financial Statements ancl our Auditor's report thereon. Ouropinion
on the Financial Statements does not cover the other in{ormation and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of tlis other information; we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of the Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act,2013 with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position and financial performance and cash flow of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the accounting Standards specilied under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accourting recorcls in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and desigo implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financiai statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
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concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting

Process.

Auditols Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identifv and assess the dsks of the material misstatement of the financial statement
whether due to fraud or error, design anc{ perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion. The dsk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forger,v, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
1a3(3)(i) of the Companies Ac! 201.3, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auc{itor's report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosules are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit eviclence obtained up to the date of our
Auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding indepenclence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonablv be thought to bear on our independence,
ancl where applicable, related safeguards.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report ) Order,2020 ("the Order"), issued by the
Central Government Of India in terms of sub-section(11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act
2013, we give in the Annexure A, a Statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order , to the extent applicable.

l. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit ancl Loss and the cash flow dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

d) Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with RuIe 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received {rom the directors as on 31st March,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section1,64 (2) of the Act.

0 With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such conkols, refer to our separate Report
in "Annexure B".

II

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auclitors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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(B) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and beliei no
funds (wfuch are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Cornpany from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirecdy, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Uitimate Benef iciaries;

(C) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (i) antl (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (A)
ancl (B) above, contain any material misstatement.

e) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the yeat. Hence,
compliance of provision of section 123 of Companies Act, 2013 does not arise.

With respect to the other matters to be inclutled in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended :
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a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pencling litigations which would impact on
financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note.24 to the financial statements;

b) The Company did not have any longterm contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foteseeable losses;

c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

d)
(A) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no

funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Companv to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identiJied in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Companv ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;



In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanatiott" g:":'
io ,r., ,i'," remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in

accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act'
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Kothari & Co LLP
Accountants

Firm Registra on o.: 307069PE300265
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C.A. Chandra Soni
Partner

Membership No.:057620

Place: Kolkata
pulg; 2^a !une,2023
UDIN: 230575208GVKFC7250
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"ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

The Armexure A referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading'Report on Other Legal &
Regulatory Requirements' of our report of even date to the financial statements of I\4/s BALLY
JUTE COMPANY LIMITED for the year ended March 3-1,2023, we report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-
in- progress, investment properties anci relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, report under
clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the order is not applicable.

(b) As explained to us, the Property, plant, ar.rcl equipment have been physically verifiecl
by the management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the title deeds of immovable properties
disclosed in the financial statements as on the balance sheet dateare held in the name
of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right
of Use assets) or intangible assets or both cluring the year.

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company does not have any proceedings initiated or are pending against the
company for hoiding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and Rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The inventory has been physically verifiecl by the management during the year at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion the coverage and procedure of such verification
by the management is appropriate. The discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed. However, the discrepancies
noticed on verification, is less than 10% anrl the same have been properly dealt with
in the books of account.

(b) During the year, the company has been sanctioned a working capital limit in excess
of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial instifutions on the basis of
security of current assets; the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company
with such banks and financial institutions are in agreement with books of accounts of
the company.

(iii) According to the information & explanations given to us and the basis of our
examinations of the records of the Companv, during the year, the Company has not
made investment in,or provided any guarantee or granted any loans or advances in
the nature of loans, secured/unsecuretl, to companies/ firms/ Lirnited Liability
Partnerships/ other parties.

$+ 1,
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(a) Based on the audit procedwes carried out by us and as per in{ormation and,
explanations given to us, during the year, the Company has not provided loans or
advances in the nature of loans or stood guarantee or provided security to any other
entity.

(b) According to the information & explanations given to us and the basis of our
examinations of the records of the Company, the Company has not made investment in
or provided guarantee or security providecl or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans during the year.

(c) According to the information & explanations given to us and the basis of our
examinations of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans during the year, hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information & explanations given to us and the basis of our
examinations of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans during the year, hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(d) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information & explanafions given to us and the basis of our
examinations of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans during the year, hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) According to the information & explanations given to us and the basis of our
examinations of the records of the Companv, the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans during the vear, hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) of
the Orc{er is not applicable to the Company.

(i") In our opinion and according to the inforrnation and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loan, made invesknents or provided any guarantees or
security to any person specified under section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
Company has not given any loans and guarantees or provided any security in
connection with a loaru and make investments within the meaning of Section 186 of
Companies Act, 2013. Hence teporting of otl.rer inJormation under clause 3 (iv) of the
said Order is not required.

(r) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
exarnination of the books of account, the company has not accepted any deposits from
the public ard there is no amounts which are deemed to be deposits and consequently,
the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of lndia and provisions of Section 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made thereunder
[the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits are not
applicable to the company.

tL
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("i) The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records under suFsection
(1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act 2013, in resPect of the activities carried on by
the Company. We have broadly reviewec{ the books of account maintained by the

company in respect of products where maintenance of cost records has been prescribed
and are of the opinion tha! prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been
maintained. We have not however made a detailed examination of such records with a

view to determine whether they are accurate and comPlete.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, EmPloyees State

Insurance, Income-Tax and any other statutorv dues to the appropriate authority and

no undisputed amounts in respect of the above was in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a

period of more than six months from the date they become payable. '

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the

Company examined by us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax,

Central Sales Tax, West Bengal Value Adcleci Tax and Excise Duty on account of
dispute; except the following -
(a) ln respcct of CST for the Financial Yesr 2014-15 arllounting to Rs.9.02 lakhs.

(b) In respect of INB VAT t'or tle Financial Year 2005-06 amounting to Rs. 156.84 Lakhs.

(c) In respect of ESIC for the Financial Year 2009--10 amounting to Rs. 38.46 Lakhs .

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the books of accounts and other records, the comPany does not have

any transactions unrecorded in the books of account and which were surrendered or
disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Hence

reporting of other information under clause 3 (viii) of the said Order is not required.

(ix) (a) Based on our Audit procedure and on the information and explanation given by the
management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment
of dues to any Financial Institution and Banks. Hence reporting of hformation under
clause 3 (ix) (a) of the said Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the inlormation and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the other records, the company has not been declared as a willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or other lender. Hence reporting of
information under clause 3 (ix) (b) of the saici Order is not applicable.

(c) Accorcling to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the financial statements of tl-re Company, we report that the company
has taken term loan during the year and in our opinion, term loans availed by the
company were applied by the company cluring the year for the purposes for which
the loans were obtained.

Y
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(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised
on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the company
has not taken any fund from any enti$ or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or ioint ventures, as defined in the Act. The
Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or ioint
venture (as defined in the Act) during the year ended 31st March 2023. Hence
reporting of information under clause 3 (ix) (e) of the said Order is not applicable.

(f) According to the inJormation and explanations given to us and procedures
performed by us, we report that the company has not raised loans during the year on
the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.
The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates oi joint
venture (as defined in the Act) during the year ended 31st March 2023. Hence,
reporfing of other inJormation under clause 3 (ix) (f) of the said Order is not
applicable.

(r) (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the managemen! the company has not raised any money by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (inclutling debt instruments) during the year.
Hence reporting of information under clause 3 (x) (a) of the said Orcler is not
applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records, the company has not made any preferential allotrnent or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures (fully, partially
or optionally convertible) during the year. Therefore, reporting of information under
clause 3 (x) (b) of the said Order is not applicable.

(*i) (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has neither committed any fraud nor has any
fraud onthe company been noticed ot reporteci during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given by the management, no report
under section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act 2013 has been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescrikd uncier rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules 2014 with the Central Govermnent.

(c) There has been no instance of whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year under audit.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting of information under clause 3
(xii) (a) to (c) of the said Order is not applicable to the Company.

l/
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(xiii) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the inJormation and explanations given
by the management, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the
Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)(a) In our opinion the company has an internal control system cormensurate with the

size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit report for the year under audit, issued to the
company till date in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting under Paragraph 3
(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) a) Based upon the audit procedures performecl and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company is not required to be registered under section 45
IA of the ReserveBank of India Act, 1934.

c)Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the Company is a not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as

defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under
Paragraph 3 (xvi) (c) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

d)According to the inJormation and explanations provided to us during the course of
audil theGroup (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve

Bank) Directions, 2016)does not have any core investment company.

(xvii) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not incurred cash losses in the current
financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, there has not been any resignation of the

. statutory auditors of the company during the year.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of financial
ratios,ageing and expected dates of realizations of financial assets and payment of the
financialliabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Boardof Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supportingthe assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention which causes us to belief that any materialuncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that the company is not capable of meetingits liabilities existing at the

b)Based upon the audit procedures performed and the in{ormation and explanations
given by the management, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial
or HousingFinance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the
Reserve Bank of Indiaas per the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.
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date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of oneyear from the
balance sheet date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged
by the company as and when they fall due.

(xx) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the Company is not required to transfer any amount to any
fund specified in Schedule VII and sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013. Hence, Paragraph 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(xxi) In our opinion, the company is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial
Statements. Hence, Paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

F-or Kothari & Co LLP
d Accountants

Firm Registrati No 3O7069w30O266
.v"

D

C.A. Chandra Soni
Partner

Membership No.: 057620
Place: Kolkata
pug". 2"4 fune,2023
UDIN: 23057620BGVKFC7250
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors' Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting undet Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial conkols over financial reporting of I\4/sBALLY fUTE
COMPANY LIMITED ("the Company") as of 31't lvlarch, 2023 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internai control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the desigo
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
ancl errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conclucted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Fhancial Controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial conhols over fir.rancial repotting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
iuclgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

L
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaineci is sufficient and appropdate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accotdance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that hansactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made
onlv in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3)

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthodzed
acquisitiory use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to {uture periods are
subiect to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

k,^



I Continuation Sheet

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute o( Chartered Accountants of India.

hari & Co LLP
Accountants

Firm Registr No. 3W6eE/8300266

F

C.A. Chandra Soni
Partner

Membership No.: 057520
t

Place: Kolkata
p11g; !na fune,2023
UDIN: 230575208 GVKFC7250

KOL(A1A
100c11
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BALLY TUTE COMPANY LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2023

( Rs. in lakhs unless mentioned otherwise)

Particulars
Note
No

As at 31st March 20l|:l As at 31st Mar.h 2022

It.
(1)

(21

EOUITY AND LIABILIIIES

Sharehold€B' Funds

(a) Share Capital

O) Reserves & Surplus

Non{urrent Liabilitieq
(a) Irng-TermBorowings
(b) D€ferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Cunent Liabilities
(a) Short-TermBorrowings
(b) Trade Payables

i) Total Outstanding dues of Micro and Sma]l
Enterprises

ii) Total Outstanding dues of Trade Payables

Other than Mioo and SmaI Enterprises

(c) Other Current Liabilities
(d) Short-Term ProvGiorls

Total

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

,-. Property Plant & Equipment &\"' lntangible essets

(i) ftop€rty Plant & Equipment
(ii) Capitalwork-in-Progress
(b) Non{urrentlnveshnents

(c) Innq Term lram & Advance

Cun€nt Assets
(a) Inventories

O) Trade Receivables

(c) Cash & Cash Equivalents
(d) Short-Term Loans and Advances

(e) Other Cur€nt Assets
Total

2

3

.1

7

8

9

10

11

'12

13

14

15

76

7,?90.n

9,486.65 70,m.4

3,759.41

11A9-r.-t7

L290.n
8,964.95 10,'x5_72

3,848.48

71,017_92

3,42_74

336.63

3,564;16

284.32

8,530.63

10.12

1,455.14

1,355.41

129.87

9,'t71.35

81.03

379.74

L2a3A9
10.31

70,767.36

9.74

1.00

2714

26,02f.00

10,352.91

1.00

)212

10,805.24

75,222.76

10,353.91

14,764.21

11,959_29

2,494.65

87.n
282_24

398.81

10,6*.29

2917.77

301.81

4n4.4!

487.97

25,028.00 25,12212

Significant A(countint Policies rnd a(.ompanyin8 note

ar€ integ$l palt of thes€ Finandal Statem€nts 1-38

As p€r our R€port of this date annexed

For R.Kothari &Co LLP rOR & ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECIOR

KO
'1

LK A *
1

CA Kailash Soni

f"rbrStYM No.

Partner

<-<'^*
(Sityanrnda Sahoo)

Chief Finan.ial
Officer

Purohit) (Saniay Kumar ASarwal)

General Manager (F&A)
&s€crctary

Place:Kolkata

Dated:

Manager

(P.Debnath)

DIRECIOR
DtN -067292,a

(s.s.singh)

DIRECTOR

DIN - 06763614

R , KOTHARI & CO. LLF
CHARTEREO ACCOUNTANTS

Jul'r 2023

t.

(1)

(2)

(3)

5

6

\.

164, SHAKESPEARE SARANI,
KOLKATA.TOOOTl



STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH ,2023

( R5. ir'!!!h! c49!! -e!q9!!4 gllrryEg)

BALLY IUTE COMPANY LIMITED

Forthe year €nded 31st
M.rh 2022

Not€ No
For the year ended 31st

Marlu 2023
PaIticulars

47,206_37

11.66

35,2b6.03

7.32

41,?lg.U

v31.85

7,: 4.43

938.80

495.95

5,954.67

8,145.94

1,681.2i

o,w3.a)
6,348.:26

801.32

439.50

448a.9

21,486.97

2626.m

40,513.47 3+694.52

7M.16 514.83

7U.16 5r4.83

I
II

Itr

Iv

!,1

vII

x
x

XI
xII
XIII

514.83

n.n
50.93

0.18

18L46

521.70

5 .70 38295

cost of materials consumed
I,tn hrse of St.rk-in-bade

Change ir inventories of Iinished goods,

wort-fir-Fogress a.nd Stock-in-Trade

Employee benefi ts expense

Finance costs

Depr€ciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

TOTAL EXPENSES

Miv(lr6s) Before €t.eptionrl rnd
erEao.din.ty iteErs .nd t.r (IU-Iv)

Erceptional ltems

MV(L69) Bcfore Gttraordinaiy itens.nd t r (V- VD
Ertraordinary Itemg

Ptofiv(LoBe) beforc T.x (Vn - VIII)
Tar( ExFnse :

(1) - Curent Tax
(2) - Delerred Tax
(3) - IncomeTax for Earlier Yea/s

Profiy(tGs)for the period from continuing operations (x. x)
Pmfiy(locs) ftomdiscontinuintoperations
Profit for the period (XI + X[]

Earinq p€r Equitv SheI? (F.cevrlu€ Rel(y- e.(hl
(1) Basic (in Rs)

(2) Diluted (in Rs)

TOTAL INCOME (l+lI)

EXPENSES

INCOMI:
Revenue from Operations

Olher Income

19

m
27

22

9

a

-t7

18

4.M

4.04

2.97

L97

Si8nificnnt Accounting Policies and accompanying note

are integal part of thes€ Financial Statements 1-38

FOR & ON BEHALI OF BOARD OF

S-t,3\L9>*Soni

As p€r our Report of this drte annexed

& Co LLP

ManaSer General Manager (F&A)

(saniay lsatyanend. Sahoo)

Chief Fin.ncial
ofrficer

(s.s.singh)
DIRECTOR

DIN - 06763614

Phce:Kolk ta

Detedl
DIRECTOR

DIN - (b729238

R s @. rLP

? JUN 2023

164, SHAKESPEARE SARANI.
KOLKATA-7OOO71

31213.3s

70d.16

129.E7

52.31

0.28

131.88

38295

lE(t



BALLY JUTE COMPANY LTD.
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023

(Rs.in lakhs)

f, ] 
" -,.:

t ffi

For the year ended
31.03.2023

for the year ended
37.O32022

Particulars

495.95

9.98

938.80

704.16

439.50

5.6+

801.32

514.83

2,148.89

762.17

(1,303.00)

343.10

1,761.29

(941.14)

(800.29)

2,034.47

1.,95"1.1.6

(727.75\

2,054.33

(80.e5)

7,823.47 1,973.38

7,823.41 7,973,38

(910.41)

(e.74)

(e.e8)

(27.14)

(1,425.74)

(s.a)

(es7.271 (1131.s8)

(141.38)

(e38.80)

366.65

(801.32)

(1,080.18) (434.671

(214,U1

301.81

107.33

794,48
87.n 301.81

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NET PRO I BEFORE TAX & EXTRAORDINARY ITf,MS.
Adjustments For:

Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses

lnteiest Income
Interest & Finance Charges

OPERATING PROTIT BEFORE WORKING CAPTTAL CHANGf,S
Adjustments For

(lnoease)/Decrease in Trade & Other Receivables

(Increase) / Decrease in lnventories

Inoeas€/(De.rease) in Trade Payables and other payables

CASH CENERATED FORM OPERATIONS

Direct taxes paid
CASH FLOW BEFORE EXTRA ORDINARY ITEMS
EXTRA ORDINARY ITEMS

NET CASH FLOW OPERATING ACTIVMES AFTER D(CEPTIONAL TTEMS (A)

B. CASH FLOW TROM INVESTING ACTryIIIES
Expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment.
Expenditure on capital work in progress

Interest received

Capital advance given during the year

C. CASHFLOW TROM FINANCING ACTIVMES
Repayment & Pro(eeds from borrowings
Pay'ment oI Interest & Finance Charges

NET CASH }ROM TINANCING ACTIVMES (C)

NET INCREASE/ (DECREASf,) IN CASH & CASH EQUryALENTS (A+B+C)

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at lhe commencement of the year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS ATTHE END OF THE YEAR

FOR & ON BEHALFOF BOARD OF DIRECTOR

J^rlrfr,l4 (
)

F

.{
CA KaiI Chandra Soni : (P.Debnath)

DIRECTOR
DIN - 06729238

(s.s.singh)
DIRECTOR

DIN - 06763614

g.tt-
(S.N.Sahoo)

Place : Kolkata

M No. 05
Partner

Report of this DtF4Fe(ed.
a; e co nrzl-.-l j9-t" ' 1

Puiohit) (S.

r on, sHnri.EFrlns $ARANI,
KQLKATA-700071

I

/r

NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)

Significant Accounting Policies and accompanying note
are integral part of these Financial Statements 1-40

Figure in brackets represent outflows.

Manager G. M. (F&A) & Secretary C.F.O.

XOLKAT, A
7atc7l



BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMTTED

Noteo to the Iinandal Sl.temeni as tt 31st Ma(h, 2023 (R3.h lakhs ude$ nentioncd othe be)

As at 3l.t Mafth 202, As .t 31st M.tth Z)22

SHARE CAPTTAL

13,000,m F{uity $ures of Rs 10/ - each

(Pr€viou! Year 13,tmr0o Equity S|aI€s of R510/- each)

I..r.d & Strbkrib€d

12,9fl,6s9 F{uity ShaEs of Rs.10/- €a.h

(Bevious Ye.i 12,9u,659 Equity Shales of Rs 10/- €ach)

P.ld up

12,90,659 Equity I'ar€. of Rs.10/ - each ftrUy paid up
(Previou! Ye,I ra907,659 Equity Stures of Rt 10/- €ach)

lJm.m l,3m.m

!rm.m 1Ju).m

t,290.n t,290.v

12n.77

7,29o.77 't,290.n

729o.n

A) ]t recon iliation of fie nuber of sharcs outslading at fie begirhing and at tle md o, tle.ePoting period.

A3 ei 31sr Marlh m23 A! .t Slst Meh,2022

ksue4 Subccn:bed dd 6rly pard up Equity

shal€s oulstarding at the begining of the yeat

Add : $ure6 issued duiing the year

71W,659 7,Vn.n 12,w7,659

I!6u€4 Sub6cribcd and ft,ry paid up Equity

dur€s outstanting ar th€ €lrd of th€ yed 1z.w,659 7,290-n 72,W7,659 'I,N.V

B) Tc.!trdRtthti.tt ch€d to Sh.reo

(i) The .ompany har one class of equity sluies having a par value of Rr.10/- per shate.Each &uity shatehold€r is eligible

for ort€ voi€ Fr shat€ IEld and having lame righ.s as to dividendln dt€ event of liquidation of the Compaly,ttE €quity
shar€holdeE wiU be entill€d ro lereive remininS ass€ts of th€ company, altet diltribution oI aI p!€ferential aEtounls.

The distdbution wil be in proporti,on to the membe. of equity shar6 held hy tlte $Erehotders.

C) The name of Shareholden holding more than 51 stlares in the Company and lh€ir nulrbeis 6re as follows:

NAME Of STIAREHOLDERS
As on 3vq20a3 A, ontVoy:oz2

No. of Sh.re6

Ambi.r Capital Marl€ts Limired

Aspective Tie Up Limited
Goldview lirwrial S€rvic€s Limited
Kshitiz MerclEdis Pvt. Ltd.

Saabi.tla vyapaar Lihit€d.

4,793,0n

7,7&,m
7,W7533

1,686,000

r,664,500

37.13

13.50

8.50

13.ft
13.05

4,793,4n

L76,m
1,097533

1,686,0m

r,6E45{D

37.lC

13.53

83)
13.06

13.05

st. N.me of Sharchold€E

4,7 ,O73 37.13 4,793,O73 37

2 Itd- 7,746,UN 1353 1,7\6,Un t3
3 47,542 0.37 47,542 0

Aucld.nd Sepic6 & Secu.itis Limited 266,W 26 26,!'(n
5 Abhishek Kuma. Kanka.ia 572,EN 3.97 51Z9OO 3.

124,109 724,709 0

Gold View FiMmial Sedi.6 Ltd 't,097,533 a50 1,w7,533 a

KaMk T€xtile LTD. 2,gn 0.02 2,ffi
KsHtiz Mer.handise Ltd 1,686,000 r3.06 1,&,Un

l0 Om Ltd- 2,5[n o.o2 z5oo 0

tl Ltd. 1,684,500 13.05 1,684,5m 13

12 S.ore Infomation T Ltd. 135,416 t05 735,416 '1

l3 Pvt- Ltd. 2"st]o 002 z5oo 0

It 52,443 4.ta 573,483
t5 Manbi! rincom Rt, Ltd. 2O.r,m0 t.5a 204,000 1

1 99.41

;i;\

,-A
7 lt

I

r
r

/

Lm.v

129o.n

No. of Sh.!c6

L290.V

I

- 
".. "f 

sh*"-___l

*



BALLY JUTE COMPAIIY LIMMED
Note6 to the rinan.lal Strtem€nt as at 31sl MrrcIL 2m3

3. RESERVES AND SI'RPLUS

(R6.in lakh6 unl€ss nentioned otherwise)

x22
Addition, Ct€aled

Surplus / (Defi.it) in the Statement of

Capital Res€oes lm.75

(170_76)

557.58

(ssz58)

5,9dit.v7

15,%1.97',)

227t.4
(1,E91.691

52r.70

(382.95)

1it0,76

(170.761

si758

(ss7sE)

5t61,r7

F,%a.m
2;795.34

1227r.il)

&954.95 gre
(&964.9s)(EJEZm)

ri8@6 in bra.kets ftfle.ts the figuiEs of tr6t Finan ial Yea.

(R6.ih Lekh!)

A6 at 31st MaEhr023 As al 31st March,2022

146.9E

1,&16.05

23.00

(555.12)

2,71,3.47

(s%.13)

183.17

1,145_65

2,706.74 2,4$.76

449.00

267.N

449.W

267.00

NON<URRENT LIABILITIES

4. LONGTERM BORROWNGS

(i) secEd lrar

:) Telm lo.n8 fmm b.*3
(Refer Note 4a)

b) vehlcle l,oan

(R€f€r Nore 4A )

c) Equlpment Loan

(Refe. Not€ aA )

(ii) Loan fton LIC (Secur€d .taiE. rhe Key Man Pollcy)

L.ss: C'ftnt m.turities of lory tem borrodng6 (Refer note 5)

(iii) Unse.urEd Lou
t an from Relat€d Paties

t frcm Other Parties

3,427a 3,554.15

G

Y.J#
11

I
duing As al 316t Mairh 2OI

Yer.t NZI-22

L245.47

5n_m

''
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BALLY JUTE COMPAIIY LIMITED

Nor.. b th. Itn.n lal St t ftent .s .t 3ldt M:l(h. 2023 Es.in l.th! unless mention d othc ise)

A3 .t 31.t
Mr'.lr ZY22

CIJRIENT LIAEILITIES

s.SHORT TETM EORROWINGS

6,2n.57 6,979.22

Prio.ry: Secured tI/ hypothecation of Current aslets viz. Raw lraterials,

worl-in-PrcgEs6, Slores & Spares, Semi- rinished Sood!, Finished goods and Book debrs.

Co[.r.nl S€cured by:-

(a) &jsting Planl and lvlachin€ry

O) EMI of land r'iih fa.tory building sh€d ,lld Godwon in the name of M/s Bdly lute ComPany

LiEited. (M no. 6,65 Measuring r7.m5 Acre6)

(iii) PeEorul Cu,Iantee or Sd A.KKrnlaria
(i9 Coryoraie Guaranre€ oI Ambica lute Millr trd.

Cunent Malurities of Lrng'term Debt - CaMra Bank (Bef€r Not€ No.{) 555_12 59.1.13

(ll)Uru.(1,rGd Loin
lr.n from R€lated Panies

lran tom Olher Patii6
1J4.m

4{,2.N

r60.00

1,438.m

n.35

6. TRADE PAYABLE

Du€s !o Miro & SE'arr EnterFise (Refe Note No.U)
Othe6

10.12

1,1165.1{

81.03

319.71

4@.71

As at 31.(B2023Trade Payable6 (Aseins)
Morc than 3

Total
Le8. than 1

1-ZYeat
10.12(i) MSME 10-12

a,465.141,450.05 6-15 7.59 1.05(ii) Others
(iii) DisDuted dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others

-EI
-II-

I
Trade Payabl€s (Asein8) As at 31.031022

More th.n 3
TotalPnrti(ulars

Less than 1

1-2 Year 2-3 years

81.0381.03(D MSME
309.51 9.18 1.05 379-74(ii) Others

(iii) DisDuted dues - MSME
(iv)Disputed dues - Others

E-

-

I I
AB rt 31!t
M.Eh,2@

Z OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

lnlele€t Accrued and due on Borrowings
lnler€st Accrued but not due m Bo@ings
AdvatEe aaainst Covemment Grart
Statutory Dues

Liabitities f or Expe(s€s

Advarre frcm Customer

8. SHORT.TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for I ome Tax

164.75

37.7

1{/}.77

931.91

60.88

144.83

16.53

D.&
135-sO

E{7.23

755_94

1355.41 7,X3.49

t29-87 762.3t

7U.8? 752.31

+*
? 7ac

J.

A! .t 3l6a
MrrEt!,20,|:i

(0 s..utd L.r!r

Wotling C.pital frility lion fthedd€d Barlt (Canara Banr)

Ai .t 3l6t MdtI! 20Zl

,l
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BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statement as at 31st March,2023 (Rs.in lakhs)

Particulars
As at 31st

March 2023
As at 31st
March 2022

10. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Non Trade Investment Unquoted

1.00 1.00

Number
Face value

pe! unit
10,000

(10000)

Rs 10 AKK Mercantile Pvt. Ltd.
(Fufly paid Equity Shares)(Rs 10)

Figures in bra.kets reflects the figures of fast Financial Yeat

11. LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Unsecured,considered good)

Capital advance against equipment

CI,JRRENT ASSETS

I2INVENTORIES (A5 take4valued and certified by the Management)

Raw Materials (Cost or Market Price whichever is lower)

Work-in-progess (At EstLnated Cost)

Finished fus (At Cost or Net realizable value whichever is lower)

Stores & Spares (At Weighted Average Cost)

13.IRADE RECETVABLES

Unsecued (Considered Good)

Trade Receivables

1.00 1.00

27.14

71,959.29 70,65629

2,494.65 2,917.77

2,494.65 2,977.71

Trade Receivables (Ageing) As at 31.03.2023

Particulars
Less than 6
months 5months-1YGa 1-2 Year 2-3 years

Morc thatr 3
ye.u3 Tot.l

Undisputed Trade Rec€ivable

- Considered Cood 2,134.a7 92.84 266.94 2494.65
- Considered Doubtful
Disputed Trade Receivable
- Considered C,ood
- Considered Doubdul

Trade Re.€ivables (Ag€ins) As at 31.03.2022

Particulars 5months-1Y€a I -2 Year 2-3 yeals
Molt than 3
yeilrlr Tot.l

Undisputed Trade Re.eivable
- Considered Cood 2,59{a3 8.73 31:1.15 \917.77
- Considered Doubttul
Disputed Trad€ R€.eivable
- Consider€d tu
- Consid€red Doubttul

:}
? \"rby

t, Name of the Company

27.L4

4,325.76

1,885.83

5,574.37

2,123.03

1,577.8

6,7@.82

207.21



BALLY JUTE COMPAT.IY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statement as at 31st March,2023 (Rs.in taths)

Particulars
As at 31st

March 2023
As at 31rt
Marh Z)22

14. CASH & CASH EQUTVALENTS

In Cu-rrent Accounts with Schedule Bar*
Cash in hand

OTIIER EANK BALANCES

Fixed Deposit with Bank (Maturity more than 3 months but less than 12

months)

15. SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Ureecure4 Considered good)

Advances Recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received

Advances to Employees

Advances to Suppliers

Advances to Others

Deposits

16. OTIIER CURRENT ASSE'TS

Deposits/Balances with statutory authorities

Advance Income Tax ( Including Tax deducted at source)

Balance with Govemment authorities

Prepaid expense

o.92

13.76

73.69

30.38

13.97

257.46

47.77 301.81

80.14

30.48

25.64

145.98

59.65

188.

33.25

12..@

282.24 404.43

L7.B

t27.76

L87.8A

65.95

398.81 487.97

t,

12.37

199.48

185.56

90.56

t



BALLY IUTE COMPANY LIMITED
Note6 to the Finalcial Statement for the yeai ended 31Et M arcb,2021 (Rs.in lakh.s)

Particulars
For the year

ended 31st March
2023

17. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sales of Jute Goods

i.) Domestic

ii.) Export

Sale of Import Licence

Duty Drawback on Export

Revenue fiom oFrations (Net)

18. OTHER INCOME

Inberest Income

Rent Income

19. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Add :-

l€ss :

Opening stock
Purchases

Closing Stock Eefer Note No.12)

I€ss: Insurance Claim

20. CHANGES IN ITWENTORIES OF

FINISHED GOODS WORK.IN-PROGRESS

AND STOCK.IN.TRADE

Closing Stock in Progress

Closing Stock - Finished Goods

Opening Stock in Progress

Op€ning Stock - Finished Goods

(Increase)/ Decrease in Stocks

21. EMPLOYEE BENEFTTS EXPENSES

Salaries,Wages, Allowances & Bonus

Contribution to Provident & Other fund

Staff Wellare Expenses

40,759.50

4M,N

35.07

5.50

32,879.80

2,3f,3.88

47,2M.37 35,2ffi.03

9.98

1.58

7,32

2,123.03

25399.47

4325.76

2443.70
20,76.n
2,72i.O3

23,7 .6
49.74

23,146.94 27,085.97

1,885.&3

5,574.37

7,577.23

6,7@.82

7400.20 8,332"05

7,695.il

s543.@

8,332.05 7,238.63

931.85 $0%.a\

6,632.44

476.6

5.33

7,3 .43 6,U8.26

q

?
K

14
I

For the year
ended 31st March

2022

22.35

5.64

1.68

71.6

27,M.97

7,57"t.23

6,7fi.82

5,786.76

4X.41

133.09



BALLY JUTE COMPANIY LIMITED
Note6 to the Financial Statement for the (Rs.in takhs)ended 31st Marclr 2023

Particulars
For the year

ended 31st March
2U23

For the year
ended 31st March

2022

7,N4.62

(65.83)

853.U

(s1.90)

938.80 801.32

7,87-t.87

7,&2.18

765.71

80.05

74.11

2-1,4.45

u.a
77.62

158.43

10.35

7,470.56

3.75

1.00

't 378.47

7,1fi.32
. 598.63

50.61

22.75

1&.23

.26

8.63

84.80

8.46

904.08

3.30

1.00

s,954.67

FINANCE COST

Interest Exp€nses

Net gain on Foreign Currency Transaction

23. OTHER EXPENSES

Stores & Spares consumed
Power & Fuel

Freight on Govt. Supplies

Repairs to Building
Repairs to Machinery

lnsurance Premium
Bank Charges

Rabes & Taxes

Brokerage & Commission

CSR Expenses

Miscellateous Expenses

Payment to Auditors
As Auditor
Statutory Audit
Tax Audit

i
(a'r

t'-r''

4488.99



Bally ]ute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31"t Marclu 2023.

Corporate Information
Ballv Tute Comoanv Limited (The Companv) incoroorated in India with limited liabilitv
bv shares on September 4, 1982.

I.Basis of Accounting:

a) The financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost convention on the

accrual basis and on the principles of going concem. The accounting policies are

consistently applied by the Company;

b) The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects

with the Accounting Standards as prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standards)

Rules 2006, the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the Companies Act, 1955 (to
the extent applicable);

c) A11 the Assets and Liabilities have been classified as Current or Non{urrent as per
Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III of the
Company's Act, 2013. Based on the nature of the products and the time between the
acquisition of the assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents,

the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current,
non-current classification of Assets and Liabilities;

II.Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the year.

Ill.Property. Plant & Equipment :

Property, Plant & Equipment represent a significant proportion of the assets of the
Company. Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at their original cost less accumulated
depreciation / amortisation. The Cost includes the purchase cost including import duties

NOTE NO. 1: Significant Accounting Policies

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as Management becomes

aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are

reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and if material,
their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

ffi



Bally Jute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31"t March, 2023.

and non-refundable taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing an Property, Plant
& Equipment to the Location and Conditions of its intended use. Capital work in progress is

stated at cost. Cost comprises of expenditure incurred in respect of the asset under
development and includes any attributable/allocable cost and other incidental experues.

IV.Depreciation:
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is determined using the Straight Line Method
on prG'rata basis based on the useful life of the Property, Plant & Equipment as prescribed

under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, except for the plant & machinery. The
management estimates the useful life for Plant & Machinery to 25 years based upon the
evaluation carried by the technical valuer.

V.Inventories :

lnventory of the Company have been valued as follows:

a) Raw Material

b) Work In Progress

c) Stores & Spares

d) Finished Goods

At cost .

At estimated cost.

At weighted average cost.

At lower of cost or net realisable value.

Vl.Foreign Currenc]r Transactions

a) Initial Recognition:

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying
exchange rate to the foreign currency amount at the date of the transacdon;

b) Foreign Exchange Differences:

Exchange Differences arising on the date of settlement of monetary items are recognised
as income or expense on the date of settlement. However, the resulted gain or loss
relating to long term monetary item for financing acquisition of depreciable capital
assets, is adjusted to the acquisition cost of such assets and depreciated over its
remaining useful liIe.

c) Conversion:

Foreign currenry monetary items outstanding at the closing of the year, are converted
into India cunency at the appropriate rates of exchanges prevailing on the date of the
Balance Sheet

*

l8

W;'l



VII.Revenue Recognitio4!

, Sale of Product

a) All Export Sales in foreign curency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on

the dates when the relevant transactions take place ;

ii) Dividend and Interest Income

Dvidend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive dividend is
established which generally coincide as and when received.
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
Outstanding and the rate applicable.

iii) Insurance Claim

The Company recognise insurance claims when the recoverability to the claim is
established with a reasonable certainty which generally coincide as and when received.

iu) Export Incentive

The Company has recogrrised Lrcome from Draw Back Duty on Export on Accmal Basis.

VIII.Government Grantg
Govemment Grants given for acquisition of specific fixed assets are deducted from the
gross value of the relevant fixed assets on completion of the works in arriving at the book
value.
Grants received from Govemment or other authorities towards revenue are recognized
over the period in which the related costs are incurred and are deducted from the related
expenses.

Investment is Ueated as Non Current assets & stated at cost. Provision for diminution in the
value of long term investment is made only if such a decline is other than temporary nature
in the opinion of the management.

X.Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are athibutable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets

are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying assets is one that necessarily

Bally Jute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31d March, 2023.

IX.Investment

' '?/'



Bally Jute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2023.

takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other bollowing costs are

charged to revenue.

XI.Retirement Benef its

a) Contributions to Provident Fund are accounted for on accrual basis.

b) Liability in respect of Gratuity is being provided on cash basis.

c) Liability in respect to leave encashment is being accounted for on accrual basis as

calculated by the Management.

XII.Continsent Liabilitv

Contingent Liabilities are not provided for but disclosed by way of notes to the account.

XIII.Taxes On Income

Cutent tax is determined on the basis of the amount of tax payable on taxable income for
the year, Deferred tax is calculated at current statutory income tax rate and is recognized on
timing differences between taxable income & accounting income that originate in one period
and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets, subject

to consideration of prudence, are recognized and carried forward only to the extent that
there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against

which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

XIV,Provisions & Continsencies:

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when
there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an
outflow of resources.

a) Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net Profit or Loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the year.

.(

*

A,

XV.Earnings Per Share:



Bally Jute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31"t March, 2023.

24. Contingent Liability not provided in respect of

i. Bank Guarantee given by the Company's Bankers amounting to Rs.363.91 Lakhs-
(Previous year Rs.383.91 Lakhs).

Claim not acknowledged by the Company for VAT and Sales tax demand for various
financial year under appeal Rs. 165.85 Lakhs (P.Y Rs. 171.49 Lakhs).

tl.

iii. The Company paid Rs 9.41 (P.Y Rs. 4.55 Lakhs) for liability of Rs.9.41 Lakhs (P.Y Rs.

4.55 Lakhs) against Payment of Gratuity Act 1972, matter is pending under appeal
with the appellate Authority.

lv The Company paid an Advance of Rs 7.82 Lakhs (P.Y Rs 7.82 Lakhs) against the
demand raised by E.S.I.C of Rs.38.46 Lakhs (Rs.38.46 Lakhs) for which the Company
made an appeal.

25 Liability of Gratuity has been determined on the basis of Actuarial valuation as per
revised A915 as on 31.03.2023 Rs. 1,602.59 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. 1,530.99 Lakhs). The same
will be accounted for as and when paid.

26. Auditors Remuneration consists of:
(Excluding G.S.T.)

27.In the opinion of the Management, all the assets other than Fixed Assets and Non-
Current Investments have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business, at least
equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet. Provision for
depreciation and all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of what is required.

28. The Company is yet to receive balance confirmations in respect of certain trade payables,
other payables, trade receivables, other receivables and advances. The Management does
not expect any material difference alfecting the current yeat's financial statements due to
the same.

*q

Particulars Year 2022-23 \ear 2021-22

Audit Fees 3.75 3.30

Tax Audit Fees 1.00 1.00

Tirtal 4.75 4.30

70c07t
(ot(A

dA

b) For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net Profit or Loss for the
year atkibutable to the equity shareholders and weighted average number of share

outstanding if any are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Additional Notes in relation to Financial Statements



Bally Jute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31"t March, 2023.

29). A Sum of Rs. 10.11 Lakhs (P.Y 81.03 Lakhs) is payable to Micro & Small Enterprises which
are outstanding as on 31st March, 2023. This information as required to be disclosed under
the Micro and Small Enterprises Development Act' 2006 has been detelmined to the extent
such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

30) The Company has decided voluntary delisting of equity shares of the company from
Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd., as per the resolution passed in the Board Meeting held on
13th March, 2020. Accordingly, the company has already applied for its delisting under the
SEBI (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations 2009 on 6th August, 2020. Necessary approval
is pending to be received from SEBI. Since the company is under process of delisting hence
financial statement has not been prepared as per the requirement of L:rd-AS. The impact of
the same on the reported financials remains unascertained.

31) SEGMENT REPORTTNG

The entire operation of the Company relates to only one segment i.e. Jute Goods. As
such there is no separate reportable segment as defined under Accounting Standard-17
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on Segment Reporting.

32) RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE:
Name of the Related Parties and relationship with them (preoious year figures giaen in
brucket):

Company having
significant
influence

Ambica Capital Markets
Limited Loan Taken

Rs. 1183.00 Lakhs
(P.Y.148.00 Lakhs)

Rs. 1792.00 Lakhs
(P.Y Rs. 609.00

Lakhs)

Enterprise where
the company has

significant
inJluence

Bally |ute Mills
Employee's Provident

Fund Trust
P.F.Loan

Rs.1.63 Laktu
(Rs.1.30 LaLhs)

Rs. 35.74 Lakhs
(Rs. 37.37 Lakhs)

Key Managerial
Personnel

Remuneration
Rs.13.28 Lakhs

(Rs.10.89 Lat&s)

Key Managerial
Personnel

Mr.Shashi Prakash
Purohit

(Manager)
Remuneration

Rs.17.29 Lakhs
(Rs.14.57 Lakhs)

Key Managerial
Personnel

Mr.M.R.Yagnik
(Executive Director)

Remuneration
Rs. 29.00 Lakhs

(P.Y.27.5a LalJts)

Key Managerial
Personnel

Mr. S.K. Agarwal
(General Manager F&A

and Secretary)
Remuneration

Rs.22.44 Lakhs
(Rs.19.26 Lakhs)

it

Relationship Name of the Related
Party

Nature of .

Transactioris

Transaction
during the year

Balance
Outstanding as on

343/2023
(Rs.in lakhs)

Mr-Satvananda Sahoo



Bally |ute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l Marclu 202i1.

33) EARNING PER SHARE

Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the Profit after Tax, attributable to the Equity
Share holders by the weighted average number of Equity Shares Outstanding during the

as below-

34) DEFERREpTAXATION

ln view of Accounting Standards 22 "Accounting for Taxes on lncome" issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India Deferred tax Liability for the year amounting
to Rs. 52.31 Lakhs (P.Y 50.93 Lakhs) has been recognized in the Statement of Profit &
Loss .

The deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities comprise of tax effect of following timing
differences

Nominal Value per share (in Rs.) 10 10

Profit after Taxation (Rs. ln l,akhs) 527.70 382.95

Weighted average no. of shares

- For Basic E.P.S 7,29,07,659 1,29,07,659

- For Diluted E.P.S 1.,29,07,659 1,29,07,659

Basic Eaming per share (in Rs.) 2.97

Diluted Eaming per Share (in Rs.) 4.04 2.97

Depreciation as per Income Tax Act 703.80 64-1.87

Depreciation as per Companies Act 495.95 439.50

Diff erential depreciation 207.85 202.37

Deferred Tax Liabitq @ 25.768Y" 52.31. 50.93

Opening Balance of Deferred Tax Liability 284.32 233.39

Less: Deferred Tax Liability 52.37 50.93

Closing Balance of Deferred Tax Liability JJO.OJ 284.32

I4
7l

*
70aa

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.o3.2022

4.04

Particulars
2022-23

(Rs in lakhs)

202-t-22

(Rs in lakhs)



Bally fute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31"t March, 2023.

35) QUANTATIVE DETAIL (Rs. In l^akhs)

Value of Imported and Indigenous
Raw Material & Stores (including
Components & Spare Parts)

consumed

Raw Mate al :

Imported 2720.51. -11..75% 632.48 2.99%

Indigenous 20426.43 88:25% 2M54.49 97.0L%

TOTAL
1000/o 27086.97 700%

Stores:

Imported

Indigenous 1871..87 700"/. 1,00%

TOTAL 7871,87 1000/o 7378.47 "100./"

Ii Earning in Foreign Currency

Export of goods calculated on
F.O.B. Basis

406.30

Iii Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Import of Raw Jute 632.48

Travelling Expenses 72.80 47.42

.l

,..,"-'_

r-

%
Value

2021-22

s1.

No
Particulars

Value

2022-27

1.

23145.94

-1378.47

1958.13

2720.57

L
il
u

!
!
I



Bally ]ute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2023.

36 .Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure:

The Company has taken steps for hunger eradication in the local area, towards CSR

expenses. The details are as under:
In Lakhs

36) Goods & Service tax balances, as appearing in financial statements are subject to
reconciliation and annual retum.

37) Figures are rounded off to the Rupees in Lakhs and decimals thereof, unless otherwise
stated.

38) Previous year figures have been rearranged and regrouped wherever consider
necessary to conform to this year's classification

For R.Kothari & Co LLP
Accountants T] t

F FOR & ON BEHALF OF BOARD(Or.(
Tcto!"

4rA
71

CA Kailash
M No. 057620

Partner

Place : Kolkata
Dated :

Purohit) ay K
Manager

4-5^
Satyanfnda Sahoo

9^trSqL
S.S.Singh
Director

al
General Manager (F&A)
& Secretary

ndra Soni

Chief Financial
Officer

P.Debnat
Director

,)

CH
KOTHARI

ARTERED AC
CO. LLP

OUNTANTS

&
C

JUN 2C23

16A, SHAKESPEARE SARANI,

sl
No.

Year ended 31"t

March 2023
Year ended 31"t

March 2022
1 Amount required to be spent by the company during

the year
r0.29/-

2 Amount of
Eradication.

expenditure incurred on Hunger 10.35/- 8.46/-

Shortfall at the end of the year

4 Total of previous years shortfall
5 Reason for shortfall NA NA
6 Nature of CSR activities Hunger Eradication
7 Details of related party transactions in relation to CSR

expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard :

Nil Nil

KOLKATA.TOO 071

DIN{6729238 DIN - 06763514

Particulars

8.3U-

3
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BALLY IUTE COMPANY LIMITED

Regd Offc: 5, SREE CHARAN SARANI, BALLY, HOWRAH- 717201

. CIN: L51909\ /B1982PLC035245

E Mail Id: sanjay.agarwal@kankariagroup.com

!

BOARD'S REPORT

To,

The Members,

Your directors have pleasure in presenting their 41" Annual Report on the business

and operations of the company together with the Audited financial statement on
standalone basis for the financial year ended 31st March 2023.

l.LINAN

During the year under review, a brief break up of the financial performance of the
Company is given as under:

in Lacs

2. DIYIDIiND

In order. to conserve the resources of the company, the Board of Directors of the
Company have not recommended any dividend for the year ended 31st March,2023.

v

Particulars For the year ended
31" March 2023

For the year ended

31" March 2022

Revenue from Operations 41206.37 _ 3s206.03

Profit before finance
Depreciation /Amortization

charges, Tax, 2138.91 1755.65

Less: finance Charges 938.80 801.32

Profit before Tax, DepreciationL/Amortization 1200.11 954.33

Less: Depreciation 495.95 439.50

Net Profit before Taxation 704.16 s14.83

Tax exPenses t82.46 131.88

Profit/(Loss) after tax 521.70 382.9s

3.CHANG}



There was no Change in the nature of the business of the Company during the year

4. QSE&A1"I8}{L$- ANp STAT'H OF e_qMP.{,NY',$ ArE{4,lItS

During the year 2022-23 under review, the company has achieved higher sales of Rs.

412.06 crores vis-a-vis sales of Rs. 352.06 crores during the corresponding previous

year 2021-22 arrd earned higher profit before tax of Rs. 704.76lakhs vis-h-vis profit
before tax of Rs. 514.83 lakhs in the corresponding previous year 202L-22

reipectively. The company achieved production of 33801 MT and sales of 36333 MT

during the year under review which was considerably higher over corresponding

previous year. The domestic market during the year was strong with robust

government orders. The year under review was affected du9 to ongoing Russia-

Ukraine war considerably impacting the export markets.

a 5. MANAGEMEb{T DISCUSSION AND ANAILYSIS RXPORT

A. INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

The Government of India under ]ute Packaging Materials (Compulsory use in
packing commodities) Act 1987 continued with reservation norms order for
compulsory packaging of food grain and sugar. The jute Industry saw stability in
rarv jute prices amidst better uncertain weather conditions. The general demand

from the end users of jute products has been impacted owing to restricted

applications with the continuance of Russia-tlkraine war. However, the demand

from government sector for meeting packaging needs during the year was fairly
strong in view of mandatory packaging order. The alternative usage of jute

products is likely to pick up considering the eco friendly nature of jute products

and growing ecological concern world over.

B. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREADS

OPPORTUNITIES

t

a The environment friendly natural fibre jute has always been preferred by

ecological conscious end users and more and more usage is being promoted

worldwide.

The government is sympathetic towards jute considering the livelihood of
workers and farmeis associated with the jute sector and the continuance of
mandatory order for meeting packaging requirements seems perennial.

a



THREATS

i) The Compulsory packaging order issued by government of India under

]PM Act 7987 for compulsory packaging of prescribed percentage of food

grains and sugar in jute packaging material is a function of government

policy and procedures. However, the support under JPM Act to the jute

industry has been continuing from years and is likely to continue in the

interest of workers and farmers.

ii) In view of Russia -Ukraine war the exPort markets for finished

products have been impacted. However, the situation in exPort market is

likely to improve after the ongoing conflict is over.

iii) The fluctuation in crop size is a function of weather conditions

coupled with area under cultivation and the same governs the raw material

prices. However, the availability of raw jute has been stable during the

year under review.

C. SEGMENTWISE OR PRODUCTV/ISE PERFORMANCE

The Company is engaged in single business segment i.e. manufacture and sale of jute

goods. Hence, disclosure requirement in respect of business segment is not applicable

under accounting standard AS- 17 issued by th'e Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

D. OUTLOOK :

The Russia-Ukraine war has impacted the export markets qonsiderably and it is

"r,p""t"d 
that the demand will jump considerably post the ongoing conflict. It is

expected normal monsoon conditions will help better quality of raw jute availability
along with stable prices. Reports of sowing of new crop for the jute year 2023-24 has

been encouraging and favorable weather conditions could propel significant jump in
the crop size. The outlook of industry is bright owing to jute being a natural fibre
with bio-degradable characteristics. The Government policy has been supportive and

government orders continue to remain buoyant in the domestic market. The demand
flor products made out of natural fibre jute is expected to rise in view of increasing
plastic avoidance propositions around the world due to ecological concerns.

E TNTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM THEIR ADEc)TIACY.ANI-)

The internal controls of the company has been strengthened with higher frequency of
internal.checks and balances so as to provide desired timely alert signals. The said

upgraded internal controls coupled with the existing installed ERP system will help in

-

\,
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meeting'the desired results. Moreover, the internal audit meihanism is in place to
conduct the routine checks on a regular basis throughout the year for better control
and efficient management.

F. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERTIONAL
PERFORMANCE:

The following are the significant areas of financial performance:

Rs. In lacs )

G. 
.HUMAN 

RESOURCES

The industrial Relations of the production unit of the Company during the financial
year 2022-2023 were peaceful and harmonious. Supervisory Development programs
on productivity, safety, cost control, communications and human relations are being
carried out as a matter of routine. With high level of Commitment and loyalty by staff
members, the Company is confident to face the challenges of competitive market
conditions.

H. CAUTIONARYSTATEMENT

Statement in this Management Discussion and Analysis Report, describing Company's
objective, projection, expectation, estimate or prediction is based on the prevailing
Industry position and market conditions which may be different from what is
envisaged with regards to future prospects and performance. However, this may
undergo changes in future in view of the volatility involved based on weather
condition, Government Policy relating to |ute Industry, global demand and market
trends.

Particulars 2022-2023 2021-2022

Revenue from Operations (Net)

Cost of Material Consumed

Finance Cost

Profit After Tax

Inventory

41206.37

2:146.94

521.70

tr959.29

938.80

35206.03

21086.97

1,0656.29

801.32

382.9s

\,
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6. CORPORATIi GOVERNANCE

In rerms of Regulation 34(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requireinents) Regulations, 2015, a seParate report on

corporate governance together with a certificate from

M/s PRAMOD AGARV/AL & CO., a firm of practising company secretaries,

confirming compliance thereof is given in ANNEXLIRE-I forming part of this report.

7 . *;2{H-4,) N,bTfr:,yU W?*

The Annual Return of the Company is available on the Company's website:

http ://www.ballyj ute. com/.

'e.'i::{ 
-L) W:'X :t:;t}. * T*Il:* A {{il fe4,Wl: fr\ g:fi

The Boatd of Directors met 13 (Thirteen) times during this financial year ended on

31', March,2023. For details of the meeting of the Board, please refer to the corporate

governance report, which forms the part of this report.

9. INTHI{NAL FTNANC:AI, CON'I]ROI, SYSTHMS AND THHIE A}fiQJ,IACY

The details in respect of internal financial control and their adequacy are included in
management discussion & Analysis which form part of this report.

3.*"'?t4,r{gx"{,\X-b&fi {}Y l,*bW, {;:1J,*:YIAN'T:YfiS hWil-3?W&fiTwlffitr::{fi UNfr
9f:;{;:"3}Wfi&

The particulars of loan, investments and guarantees have been disclosed in the
financial statements for the year ended 31" March 2023.

11 . 1:t"K'.3;3fr_Z]t &,W**{29*_!WWI&&d,yfi"_ {}fr, bB"fr"NNfr:WWT:.N1:S* Wt:YTt _XI-Ngg,U
?szti.tl3h;

As required under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, related party transactions are

placed before the Audit Committee for approval. Wherever required, prior approval
of the Audit Committee is obtained on an omnibus basis for continuous transactions
and the corresponding actual transactions become a subject of review at subsequent

Audit Committee Meetings.

- All the related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year

were on an arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of business and in
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI
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(LODR) Regulations, 2015 there were no materially significant related party
transaction which may have conflict with interest of the company or which are

required.to be reported in form AOC 2.

The disclosures as required AS - 18 have been made in Notes to Accounts of the

Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March,2023.

1';.{.t-}111'1,\ANCY"W'ii,"t;]?3SUCW.T1'L'A141hI"ST:ANTthL4l}*

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

1 :4 . &.1; I>T:;'. {} 11,$: fi.}iy-L> Ky:

Th" Notes on accounts referred to the auditors' report are self-explanatory and do not
call for any further explanation.

14. MATERIAT CHANGES AFFECTING THH T'INANCIAI POSITTON OF THE
COMPANY

There is no material change in the financial position of the Company subsequent to
balance sheer date which will affect the Company.

15. E}N/IORNMIIN"I]. IINERGY CONSIRYATION. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
AND FORSIGN EXCHANGE AARNING AND OUTGO

As required by the Companies Act 2013, the relevant data pertaining to the
conservation of energy etc. are given in ANNEXURE -2 of this report.

\- 1 *. !1,,15%. W,bJ\.k *Wgl{Ly"ffi}t3 
"

In compiiance with the requirement of the Companies Act, Zbt3 the Company has

put in place Risk Minimization and Assessment Procedures. In order to effectively
and efficiently manage risk and address challenges, the company has formulated Risk
Management Policy.

The combination of policies and procedures adequately addresses the various risks
associated with your Company's businesses.

17. {;1},wkL;}-tw}

/
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During the year under review, there is no change in director & Key managerial

personnel (KMP) of the Company.

Mrs. Nibedita Majumder, (holding DIN-07168214) shall retire by rotation at the

ensuing annual general meeting and, being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

The information about the director seeking re-appointment as required by Regulation

36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings have

been given in the notice convening the ensuing annual general meeting

. 1 #, " w-f;fibL$}, E E T:*H-W IHfrY,P WUrffil: * 1&wf;1: {}32

AIi the independent directors have declared that they meet the criteria of
independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Regulation 16(1Xb) and Regulation 25 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, there has been no change in the
circumstances which may affect their status as independent directors of the Company
and the Board of Directors are satisfied of the integrity, expertise, and experience of all
the independent directors on the Board of Directors. AII the independent directors
have registered themselves on INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS DATABANK.

1U . .Kr:y ?"4 ?.,W h{;UwLlt"t* yg,X,$-8NNfr;V*

During the year under review, there is no changes in Key Managerial personnel (KMP)
as per provision of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015.

2t'. ltl-{J %,3.,},{"; *,b"}: g}f;3' Tfi

The Company has not accepted deposits from public within the meaning of Section 73
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed there under. Further, no amount
on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the
date of the balance sheet.

x " frSicqtr:2,6y"Ir:zL *"HW-I:T
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The Board of Directors have appointed M/s Rakesh Agarwal & Co., a firm of practising

company secretaries (COP 9014) to carry out the Secretarial Audit under the

provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013. The report from the secretarial

auditor in Form MR-3 for. the financial year 2022-23 does not contain any

qualification, reservation or adverse remarks. The secretarial audit report is enclosed as

ANNEXURE-III to this report.

In compliance to SEBI circular no. CIVCFD/CMD7/27/2019 dated 08'h February,2019

Annual Secretarial Compliance was conducted by M/s S. Dalmiya & Associates.,

practicing company secretary. The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report in
prescribed format under Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is given as ANNEXURE- fV which forms the part of
this report. The observations made in the report are self explanatory.

Further, the Company has uploaded the Annual Secretarial Compliance Report for the

year ended 31st March,2023 issued by the Company Secretary_in practice with CSE

Limited cin 22"d May, 2023.

*.-

In compliance to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Amendment) 2018 dated 09'h May, 20i8, Certificate from Non-Disqualification of
Directors was given by M/s S. Dalmiya & Associates., practicing company secretary.

The Certificate from Non-Disqualification of Directors in prescribed format under
Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations

is given as ANNEXURE- V which forms the part of this report. The

observations made in the report are self explanatory.

'2,4,"{{7"t1,.'L:{}tr1}":7.#.9:*CJ-4LW,W*bi frTWTLXW{{-;fi Y*}7:-{X$:ffi

During the year ended 31st March, 2023, your Company has spent Rs.10,35,000/-

(approx) on various CSR activities as.per laid down under schedule VII of section 135

of the Companies Act, 2013. The annual report on CSR activities, in terms of Rule 8 of
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2074, is provided in
ANNEXURE-VI forming part of this report. During the year under review, our CSR

programs were oriented toward various activities for hunger, Poverty &
Malnutrition, Promotion education to children and other various allied activities. The
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the.Company as adopted by the Board of

/

22. ANNUI AL SF,CWYr.AR I AL COMPLIANCH

n. cwrlrled;IH or NON-DISQUAIJITICA:rION Or DIRECTOB$



Directors is available on Company's website (http:/iwww.bail),jute.coml). The

composition of CSR Committee is disclosed in the report on corporate governance

forming part of this report.

25. &rJryl'T {QWMY..EY,

The details pertaining to composition of audit committee are included in the corporate

governance reports which form the part of this report.

2{i. trl4}"fAZ'LlkTf},7,1,2K31""1Y:l-1,{3*W"?"WT'rqWfrTj*IL}\O,h,W# h$f&{YLkfr

The Board members are provided with necessary documents, reports and internal
policies to enable them to familiarize with the Company's procedures and policies.

Periodic presentations are made at the Board and Board Committee Meetings, on
'business and performance updates of the Company.

2v Cfr,1,:;r"fi]& r{}fr, WziTHwl#Wl * ffi-lkLltrtCNTY,*K:&" ?#frTTWT- liT:TzlxtfrJ:trXg

ANL TffiTgT{P-XNgAOf A DI&ICTORI

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has Formulated the criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors in terms
of provisions of section 178(3) of the Companies Act 2013 and SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015.

Nomination and remuneration committee (NRC) identify persons who are qualified to
become directors in accordance with the criteria laid down. The NRC review the
composition and diversity of Board, keeping in view the requirement of Companies

. Act, 2013 and SEBI( LODR) Regulations, 2015 and recommend to the Board
appointment/ reappointment of eligible candidates including their terms of
appointment and remuneration.

28. Alr-u PERrg-&s{A}lcE
_o_ElTf cOMMTTTEXS AlLp pTRECTORS:

Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board has devised the criteria for
evaluation of the independent directors, the Board and its committees. The Board has

carried out annual evaluation of its own performance, and that of its committees and
individual directors.







In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, it is
hereby stated to the best of our knowledge and belief that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st

March, 2023, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along

with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and

prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
aS at 31st March, 2023 and,of the profit /loss of the Co-pany for that period;

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

0 The directors had laid down internal financial controls.to be followed by the
company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were
operating effectively. While affirming this, your directors confirm the
following:

L

t 1. systems have been laid down to ensure that the transactions in the
company are executed in accordance with management's authorization in
adherence to policies and procedures adopted by the Company.

The existing assets of the Company'are verified at reasonable intervals and
appropriate actions are taken with respect to differences, if any. Access to
assets is permitted only in accordance with management's authorization
and no assets of the company are allowed to be used for personal purposes,
except in accordance with terms of employment or only if specifically
authorized

Systems and procedures exist to maintain checks and balances and to
prevent and detect frauds hnd errors.

t1

ll1.

/



lV, Proper frameworks exist to ensure that all transactions are recorded to
facilitate timely and effective preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Report containing the details of Corporate Governance System and process at Bally
Jute Company Limited pursuant to Part C of schedule V of SEBI ( Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation,.201 5 "Listing Regulations"

I. CO M PAJ\i{Y'S PTilL{}SOPT{}' ON COII.POITATE C OVERNAN CE :

BALLY JUTE COMPANY LTD "THE COMPANY" believes in cultivating the
virtues of good corporate governance across the organization to attain sustained growth
through fair and ethical dealing. In pursuit to this objective, the Company is guided by a
strong emphasis to uphold the integrity, transparency and accountability in all its affairs.
The Company's code of corporate governance is aimed to protect the long term interest
of all its stakeholders.

2. IIOARI) 0F tltRtrC?',Ol{, :

a) Composition of the Board

The composition of Board of Director's of the Company has an optimum combination of
non-executive directors in conformity with Section 149 of the Companies Aet, 2013
(hereinafter referred to as "the Act") and Regulation 17 of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(hereinafter referred to as "SEBI Listing Regulations"). Presently, the Board of Directors
consists of 4 (Four) Directors with 2 (Two) Non-Executive (Independent) Directors,
I (One) Non-Executive Director, 1 (One) Non-Executive woman Director.

\ The Non-Executive Directors are liable to retire bv rotation.

All Independent Directors of the Company have been appointed as per the provisions of
the Companies Act 2013 and rules framed there under and as per Listing Regulation.

None of the Director on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committee or Chairman
of more than 5 Committees across all the Companies in which he/she is a Director. None
of the Directors holds office in more than 20 companies and in more than l0 public
companies.
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b) Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and last Annual General Meeting
along with no. of other Directorship(s) ald other Board Committee
chairmanship(s)/ Membership(s) held as on 31't March 2023.

*In case of committees, only two committees, viz. the Audit Committee and the

Stakeholder's Relationship Committee are considered.

**The directors of the Company does not hold directorship in any other listed entity

c) F,xpertise and Skills of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company are required to uphold ethical standards of
integdt.v and probity and are required to have expertise, experience and core knowledge
in the sectors relevant for the growth of the Company.

The Board members of the Company are holding such skills, expertise and competencies
that allow them to make effective contribution to the Board and its Committees.

Name of the
Directors

Position Attendance Particulars No. of other directorship(s) and other Board
committee membership(s) / chairmanship(s)
held

At Board
Meeting (s)

At last AGM
held on

0s10912022

Other
Directorship(s)

Committee
Membership(s)

Committee
Chairmanship(s)

Pradip Debnath rD (NED) l3 Yes 1 2 2

Nibedita Majumdar NED 13 Yes Nil 2 Nil
Dipankar Sarkar rD (NED) t3 Yes 1 2 Nil
Shyam Sundar
Singh

NED 13 7 Nil Nil

Finance Leadeiship in Corporate/ business finance is an important and inevitable
function and efficient financial management is crucial for success and
sustenance. It results in proficiency in financial management,
procurement and utilisation of funds and controlling the financial
activities and management of financial resources of the Company.

Strategy and
Planning

Appreciation of long-term trends, strategic choices and experience in
guiding and leading management teams to make decisions in uncertain
environments.

Global
Business

Understanding, of global business dynamics, across various
geographical markets with an understanding of industry verticals,
regulatory jurisdictiqns, economic conditions, cultures and a broad
perspective on global market opportunities.

Leadership Leadership experience leads to maximize efficiency and to achieve
Company goals by understanding the opportunities and threats,
processes, strategic planning and risk management and discussing the
financial performance and long-term growth.

Yes



Procurement,
Sales and
Marketing

Experience in procurement of raw materials, production aspects,

marketing technical aspect of production, quality control, purchase

management and developing stiategies to glow sales and market share,

build brand awareness and enhance Company reputation.

Governance Experience in developing governance practices, serving the best

interests of all stakeholders, maintaining board and management

accountability, building longterm effective stakeholder engagements,

driving corporate ethics and values and observing appropriate
governance practices.

Administration Leadership in administration of a Company, results in long-term growth

by planning, organizing, directing and controlling the operations,

creating rules and regulations and making decisions towards achieving a

common goal or obiective of the Company

The Board has identified the following skills/expertise/ competencies fundamental for the

effective functioning of the Company which are currently available with the Board:

t

\

d) Number of Board meetings held and dates on which held:

During the year THIRTEEN Board meetings were held on 27rh April'2022,
l lth -May'i022, 21" June'2022, 2*h June'2022, 04th luly'2022,
10th A.ugust'2022, 05th September'2022, l3tl September'2022,
19th September'2)22, l2th November'z}22 , I lt' February'2023 )

15th March'2023 & 30th March'2023.

e) Responsibilities
The Board's prime concentration is on strategy, policy and control, delegation of
power and specifying approval! that remain in the Board's domain besides review
of corporate performance and reporting to shareholders.

f) Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se:
No director is inter se, related to any other director on the Board.

g) Board Committees:
The Board Committees are set up under ihe formal approval of the Board to carry
out clearly defined roles which are considered to be performed by members of the
Board as a part ofgood governance practice. The Board supervises the execution
of its responsibilities by the Committees and is responsible for their action. The
minutes of the meetings of all Committees were placed before the Board, and
were duly taken on record.

h) Number of Shares and convertible instruments held by non- executive
directors:
None of the directors holds any shares or convertible instruments in the Company.

i) Weblink for familiarisation programmes imparted to independent director is
disclosed:
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The Company has a familiarization programmes for independent directors and the

same is available on the website of the Company (ww*'.ballyjute.com). The

present independent directors are well conversant with the operations of Jute

industry, the Company's model and their.responsibilities as independent directors.

However the familiarizationprogramme will be imparted as and when considered

by the board.

j) Other provisions:

It is hereby confirmed that in the opinion of the Board of Directors, the

independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in the SEBI Listing
Regulations and are independent of the management. None of the independent

directors have resigned before the expiry of their tenure of appointment. The

Company has developed proper systems to enable the Board of Directors to
periodically review compliance reports prepared by the Company in respect of
laws applicable to the Company. Corrective steps are taken by the Company to
rectify any instance of non-compliance. The Board of Directors have devised

plans for orderly succession for appointments to the Board and to senior
management level.

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT

A separate meeting of Independent Directors of the Company, without the attendance of
Non-Independent birectors and members of the Management was held on 22"d

December, 2022 as required under Schedule IV to the Companies Act 2013 (Code of
Independent Directors). At the Meeting, the Independent Directors:

Rer.ieu'ed tire performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole,

Reviewed the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the
views of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors; and Assessed the quality,
quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and
the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their
duties.

Mr. Dipankar Sarkar and Mr. Pradip Debnath attended the Meeting of Independent
Directors. Mr. Pradip Debnath chaired the meeting.

None of the Non-Executive Directors and Independent Director of the Company has any
material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company.
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3. AIlI}I'T COMMI'I*I'II[]:

a) Brief Description of Terms of Reference

The Company has duly constituted Audit Committee in compliance with provisions of
section 117 of the companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligation
and Disclosure requirement) Regulations, 2015 as amended form time to time.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with the Section 177 of the
Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
requirement) Regulations,2015. The broad functions of Audit Committee:

a. To discuss and review the comment on Internal Audit Reports submitted by
Company's Internal Auditor.

b. To review the progress on implementation of the suggestions made by Internal
Auditors.

c. To discuss and review the observations of Internal Auditors, cost control
measures, statutory compliances etc. in various functional areas.

d. Recommending the appointment and removal of auditors and fixing their
remuneration.

e. Review with the Management the annual, half-yearly and quarterly financial
statements before submission to the Board.

b) Comrrosition. Name of Members and Chairman.

The composition of the Audit Committee is given below:

c) MEETINGS

During the year Nine Audit Committee meetings were held on 15ih April2022, 13th June
2022,22'd June 2022,28th June 2022,01't August 2022,29th August 2o2z,28ih october
2022,20th January 2023 8.2}th March 2023.

Name & Designation Category Number of Meeting

Attended

Mr. Pradip Debnath (Chairman) Independent Director 9

Mrs. Nibedita Majumder (Member) Non Executive Director 9

Mr. Dipankar Sarkar (Member) Independent Director 9
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1. NOilII NA'TION AND ITEIVIUNERATIOI* COMMI:I"TEA

The Company has duly constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee in
compliance with provisions of section 178 of the companies Act,2013 and Regulation l8
of SEBI (Listing Obligtition and Disclosure requirement) Regulations,2015.

a) Brief Descrintion of Terms of Reference

a. Make recommendations regarding the composition of the Board, identify
Independent Directors to be inducted to the Board form time to time and take

steps to refresh the composition of the Board from time to time.

b. Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be

appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down,
recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and carry out evaluation
of every Director's performance.

c. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a Director and recommend to the Board Policy relating to the
remuneration of.the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

d. Formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.

e. Devise a policy on Board Diversity

b) Composition. Name of Members and Chairman

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is given below:

c) MEETINGS

During the year ONE Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings were held on
28th Juns 2022.

Name & Designation Category Number of

Meeting

Attended

Mr. Dipankar Sarkar, (Member) Independent Director 1

Mr. Pradip Debnath,(Chairman) Independent Director 1

Mrs. Nibedita Majumder (Member) Non Executive Director 1
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d) PERFORMAN EVALUATION OF IND DIRECTORS

Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board has devised the criteria for
evaluation of the independent directors, the Board and its committees. The Board carried

out annual evaluation of independent directors on the basis of criteria laid down. The

evaluation was done by the Board of Directors except the directors who was evaluated.

5. HliilruilitlRA'I't(}li T0 DIItnc I"0RS

a) Remuneration Policy

The Company has adopted a Remuneration Policy for the Directors, Key Managerial

Personnel and other employees, pursuant to the provisions of the Act 2013 and SEBI

LODR Regulations.

The philosophy for remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and all other
employees of the Company is based on the commitment of fostering a culture of
leadership with trust. The Remuneration Policy of the Company is aligned to this
philosophy.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has considered the following factors while
formulating the Policy:

(i) Determine the level and composition of remuneration that will attract, retain and
motivate directors, KMPs, senior managerial personnel and other employees of the

Company.

(ii) Provide a well balanced and performance based remuneration package taking into
account industry standard and relevant corporate regulations.

(iii)Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks.

! b) Details of Remuneration & Sittine fees

The Non-Executive Directors are remunerated by way of siuing fees. The sitting fees
payable to the Non-Executive Directors is based on the number of meetings of the Board
attended by them. Directors of the Company were paid a sitting fee as under during the
Financial Year 2022-23 for each meeting of the Board attended by them.

. Directors are paid sitting fees at the rate of Rs. 1000/- for attending each Board meetings.

6. STAKE TTOI,DERS RELATIONSHIP COIIIMITTEE

a) Name of non-executive director heading the committee :
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The members and chairman of the committee are:-

Mr. Pradip Debnath (chairman)

Mrs. Nibedita Majumder (member)

Mr. Dipankar Sarkar (member)

During the year One Stake holders Relationship Committee meetings were held on 28th

June,2022.

b) Name and designation of compliance officer

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agarwal, the Company Secretary of the Company is the compliance
officer.

c) Investorscomplaints

No complaints were received from the'Investors/Share holders.

7. Z'' {?i tutut-)Tti {.:43wwz,ry"Tzi,w

A committee of the Board constituted in year 2014 and re-constituted thereafter to
boron money up to the extent of Rs.200 crores and to give guarantee or provide security
in respect of loan taken by others up to the limit of Rs.200 crores. The Committee was
constituted to align with the requirements of Companies Act 2013. The Committee was
re-constituted u'ith effect from 05th September, 2022 withmembers as Mr. Shyam Sundar
Singh and Mr. Pradip Debnath. The compositions of the committee are:-

Mr Shyam Sundar Singh (Member)

Mr. Pradip Debnath (Member)

The Committee met Four times during the year under report on 0510412022,0611012022,
1 9 I 12 I 2022 and 22 I 03 I 2023 .
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a) Composition, name of members and chairperson

The details of composition of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee with. name of members and chairperson are as follows:

Mr. Pradip Debnath (chairman)



Mrs. Nibedita Majumder (member)

Mr. Dipankar Sarkar (member)

Mr. Sanjay Kr. Agarwal (Secretary)

During the year One Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meetings were held on
02nd April, 2022.

9. GII]:{TiIIAL I}ODY MEETINGS

a) Details of the last three Annual General Meetings held are as under :

Financial Year Location Date Time Special
Resolution

\>

-do- 26.09.2020 -10.00 A. M None

2020-2t -do- 06.09.202t 1 1.00 A. M None

2021-22 -do- 05.09.2022 10.00 A. M None

b) POSTAL BALLOT

No special resolution was passed last year through postal ballot and special resolution is
proposed to be passed in the current year but such item ofbusiness are not covered under
section 110 of the companies' act 2013 . Further as per notification dated 13th June,
20.18, the companies having members up to two hundred are not required to transact any
business through postal ballot.

IO. CORT OF CONI}UCT :

The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all the Board Members and Senior
Management of the Company. All the Board Members and Senior Management
personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code for 2022-23. A declaration to this
effect duly signed by manager forms part of this Annual Report.

I I. I?IEANS OF COilIMUNICATION

The Company had submitted its Quarterly, Half Yearly and Yearly financial results to the
Stock Exchange soon after its approval by the Board and published the same in News
Papers as required by listing Regulation.

s 2oD-20



The quarterly, half yearly and annual working results of the company are published in
newspapers like Financial Express (English) and Arthik Lipi (Bengali).

The Company has its own functional website www.ballyjute.com where information
about the Company's Quarterly, Half Yearly and Yearly financial results, annual report,
distribution of shareholding at the end of each quarter required to be disclosed under
Regulation 30(8) and 46 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation,2015 are regularly updated.

I 2. G [i N lilt AL S]:lARti H OLI],IIIi INfOlt l\'I A'l"I ON

a) Annual General Meetins

41't Annual General Meeting will be held on 5th September '2023 at 10.00 A.M.
at its Registered Office at 5, Sree Charan'Sarani, Bally, Howrah -71I201.

b) Financial Calendar (2023-2024):
(tentative)

\}
Quarter ending June 30,2023

Quarter ending September 30,2023

Quarter ending December 31,2023
Quarter ending March 31,2024

: On or before 14th August,2023
: On or before l4th November,2023
: On or before 14th February,2)24
: On or before l4th May,2024

c) Date of Book Closins :

30th August,2023 to 05th September, 2023 (bothday inclusive)

d) Dividend

The board has not recommended any dividend on Equity shares.

e) Listins on Stock Exchanse : 1) The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd.
(Intimation to stock Exchange for delisting of shares vide its letter dated 06.08.2020
and subsequent submission on various dates)

0 Demat ISIN - Not Allotted

g) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent :

. ABS Consultants Pvt. I;td.
"Stephen House", Room No.99
6th Floor, 4, B.B.D. Bag (East),
Kolkata-7O0 001.

h) Status of Dematerialization of Shares as on 31st March. 2023.

As on 3 I't March , 2023, entire Equity Shares of the company are being held in
physical Form by the Shareholders.
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i) Distribution of Shareholdins as on 31st March. 2023

j) Catesory of Shareholders as on 31st March, 2023.

k) Stock Market Data - There was no trading during the year under review and

thus High / Low market price data for Stock performance in comparison to broad
based indices can not be made.

r) Share Transfer System -During the period under review, no complaint was
received from the shareholders. No share transfers were pending as on 3l tt March,
2023

m) Reeistered 0ffice 5, Sree Charan Sarani, Bally, Howrah-7l1201.

n) Plant Location -do-

o) Address for correspondence: -do-

13. C{,{} / {:VO CEITTIFICATION

As required under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, the Managing Director/Manager
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company have certified to the Board regarding
review of financial statement for the year under review, compliance with the
accounting standards and applicable laws and regulations, maintenance of intemal
control for financial reporting and accounting policies.

Slab of Shareholdings
No. of

Shareholders olto No. of Shares OTto

1- 500 15 37.5 590' 0.004

501 - 1000 1 2.5 638 0.005

1001 - 2000

2001 - 3000 12 30 31 375 0.24

3001 - 4000
4001 5000

5001 - 10000

10001 and above 12 30 12875056 99.75

Total 40 100 12907659 100

Category No. of Shares % of Shareholdings
Promoters 12882556 99.81

lnstitutional I nvestors

Body Corporate

lndian Public 251 03 0.19

NRls / OCBs

Total 12907659 100
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The Company has an established mechanism for Directors / Employees to report
concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the
Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. It also provides for adequate safeguards against
victimization of Directors/ employees who avail the mechanism.

None of the employee(s) has been denied access to the Audit Committee.

X, 5. {:.. Lq4;.2"b X' 3" bik ta'Z' Z tu {"}

India Ratings & Research (Ind-Ra) has affirmed long-term issuer rating at "IND
BBB" The outlook is stable. The instrument-wise rating actions are as follows:-

Instrument Type Rating/Outlook Rating action
Fund based Limit IND BBB/Stable Affirmed

Non-Fund-based Limit IND 43+ Affirmed
Term Loan IND BBB/Stable Affirmed

1{t.43'2"7:*%i,&Z&,h&b{'.Z,€'rgTt*&.U!,%

a) As required under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,2015, related party transactions
are placed before the Audit Committee for approval. Wherever required, prior
approval of the Audit Committee is obtained on an omnibus basis for continuous
transactions and the corresponding actual transactions become a subject of review
at subsequent Audit Committee Meetings.

All the related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year
were on an arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of business and in
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 there were no materially significant related
party transaction which may have conflict with interest of the company or which
are required to be reported in form AOC 2.

The Company has formulated a policy on related party transactions for purpose of
identification and monitoring of such transactions. The said policy and other
policies and code of conduct adopted by the Board are displayed on the website of
the Company (www.balllzj ute.com).

Disclosures as required under AS-18 have been made in Note 31 to the financial
statements for the year ended 31st March,2023.

b) No penalty has been imposed by any stock exchange, SEBI or SEC, nor has there
been any instance of non-compliance with any legal requirements, or on matters
relating to the capital market over the last three years
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c) Disclosure of bompliance with mandatory and non-mandatory corporate
governance requirements :

The Company has made compliance with corporate governance requirements as

specified in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement / Regulations l7 to 27 and clause (b)
to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 read with schedule V to listing
Regulations.

Mandatory requirements: The Company has complied with all mandatory
requirements under the Listing Agreement / Listing Regulations.

For and on behalf of the Board
BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED

{n*r
PRADIP DEBNATH

DIRECTOR
DIN: 06729238

Place: Bally
Date: 30.06.2023

s-
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In terms of the Listing Regulations, I hereby confirm and declare that, all the Board
Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance
with the respective Code of Conduct, as applicable to them for the year ended 31st
March,2023.

For and on behalf of the Board
BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED

?
Place: Bally
Date: 30.06.2023

PRADIP DEBNATH
DIRECTOR

DN:06729238

IFq L,-t-'{--
L
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[Pursuant to Regulation l7(8) read with Part B of Schedule II of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015I

CEI{'TIFICATION F}i.OM PIAI{AGEn & {:r{} {rF Tmr, {:o*il,AN}'

To
The Board of Directors
Bally Jute Company Ltd.

V/e, Shashi Prakash Purohit, Manager and Satyananda Sahoo, Chief Financial Officer of
Bally Jute Company Ltd (the Company") to the best of our knowledge and belief certify
that:

a) We had reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the

financial year ended on 31.03.2023 and that to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

These statements do not contain'any materially untrue statement or omit
any material fact or contain any statements that might be misleading;

These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards,
applicable laws and regulation.

b) We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no
transactions entered into by the Company during the year, which are fraudulent,
illegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduct.

c) We hereby declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and Executive
Committee have confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct as adopted by
the Company.

d) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we had evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems
of the Company pertaining to financial reporting of the Company and had
disclosed to the Auditors and Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or
operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have
taken or proposed to take to rectify these deficiencies.

e) We had indicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to
the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

significant changes; if any, in internal control over financial reporting
during the year;

1.

ll

C

1.
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111.

significant changes, if any, in the accounting polices during the year
and that the same has been disclosed in the notes to the financial
staternents; and
Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the
involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having
significant role in the Company's intemal control system over the
financial reporting.

t
Place: Bally
Date: 30.06.2023

s"tffid;-mPrakash Purohit
(Manager) (Chief Financial Offi cer)

L



PRAMOD AGARWAL & CO.
Practising Company SecretarieS

BAGRI MARKET
71, CANNTNG STREET
4rII FLOO&-ROOM NO.C459
KOLKATA-7OOOO1
1033480019s3
E-MAIL: ora mod.asarwal2677(Osmail,com

L

CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF
CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members of
BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED

I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Bally Jute
Company Limited for the year ended on March 31,2023, as stipulated in Regulations 17 lo27
and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management.
My examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. lt is neither an audit nor
an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company.

ln my opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanation given to us, we
certif,v that the company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in the above mentioned SEBI (LODR) Regulations,2015 / Listing Agreements, to the
extent applicable to the Company during the year under report.

We further state such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the company.

L
Place

Date
Kolkata
30.06.2023

For Pramod Agarwal & Co.
- Company Secretaries

rfe@{91^.,.-.-,

Pramod Agarwal
(Proprietor)

C. P. No. :4193
UDIN : F005895E000527284
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[Pursuant to Section 13a(3Xm) of the Companies Act,2013 read with rule 8(3) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 20141

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

l
i.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

ii.

L

)

111.

B. TECHNOLOGYABSORPTION

i. Efforts made towards Technology Absorption :

Efforts towards technology absorption included continued efforts for
process improvements and installation of upgraded plant & machinery
to improve ttr" efficiency, productivity and profitability of the
Company.

AH$S

Steps taken or impact on Conservation of energy :

In the past few years, the Company has tried to improve energy
efficiency significantly by various measures. Steps taken to conserve

energy include:.

At its plant, the Company has carried out various modifications in
layout to optimize energy consumption and reduce losses.

Energy efficient motors are being installed in order to optimize use of

Power.

In its plant and offices, the Company has replaced conventional light
fixtures with energy efficient fixtures such as LED lights and tubes.

Optimization of machine speed, particularly in Spinning Frames and
S4A Looms.

Maintenance of all machines, including boilers and compressors to
make them energy efficient and minimize losses.

Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy :

The Company is making maximum use of natural lighting during day
time and gradually inducting safelux system to get the factory system
illuminated.

Capital Investment on.Energy Conservation Equipment: The Company
has been making investment on continuous basis for the purpose of
energy conservation.
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ii. Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
' development or import substitution :

Improved productivity and automation process. Cost reduction has

however, been partly offset by the increase in cost of other input.

iii. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years

reckoned from the beginning of the financial year) :

1. The details of technology imported: The Company has not
imiorted any technology during the last three financial years.

2. Year of import: Not Applicabie

3. Whether the technology has been fully absorbed: Not Applicable

4. If not fuIly absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place,

and the reasons thereof : Not Applicable

iv. Expenditure incurred on Research and Developmlnt: Nil

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS /OUTGO

Earnings Rs 406.30/-

Outgo Rs2793.31/-

I

.l



0$ Rakesh Agrawal & Co.
Todi Mansion , 1, Lu Shun Sarani

(Near Poddar Court),11th Floor,
Room No. 1111 , Kolkata - 700073

Ph. : +91 8100414920
M. : +91 98312 14920

E-mail : rakesh220466@yahoo,co.in

Form No. MR-3
hu NEtUR -3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FORTHE FINANCIALYEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 20141

To,

The Members,
BALLY IUTE COMPANY LIMITED
(CIN: L5 1909w81982PLC03 5245)
5, SREE CHARAN SARANI, BALLY,
HOWRAH. 7 II2O1, WEST BENGAL

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate governance practices by BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED
(hereinafter called the "Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me
a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my
opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the company's relevant books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided to me by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit,
the explanations and clarifications given to me and the representation made by the Managemen! I
hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on March 3L,2023, generally complied with the provisions of Acts, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards listed hereunder subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, registers, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March 2023, according to
the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

[NA).
(iii)The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;(NAJ.
[iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to

the extent of Foreign Direct Investrnents, Overseas Direct Investments and External
Commercial Borrowing - As per the information provided by the Company, its officers and
the documents made available to us the following are applicable during the year:
a)Foreign Exchange Management (Exports of Goods and Services) Regulations, 2000;
b)Foreign Exchange Management (Manner of Receipts and Payments) Regulations,2000;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, L992 ('SEBI Act') :-
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations,20LS-
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Company Secretary ln Practice

8792

Requirements) Regulations, 2015- The Company is listed with Stock
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Exchange Ltd. The company has already applied for its detisting and have made every
endeavor possible to ensure the sEBt(LoDR) Regulations, 2015 comptiances.

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, L993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
(Company itself is not registered as Registrar to an Issue or Share Transfer Agent,
ABS consultants Private Ltd provides services to the Company as its Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent).

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009:- Application has been given to Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd for delisting of its
equity shares.

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011.

However following are not applicable to the Company during the reporting period:-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India flssue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2 0 1B;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India [Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations,2074;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations ,2008;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;
e. Other Acts- As per the information provided by the Company, its officers and

authorize representative there is no such other act /s applicable specifically to
the Company.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards 1 and 2
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

I report that during the period under review the Company has substantially complied with the
provisions of the Laws, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that based on the information provided by the Company, its officers and its

authorized representatives during the conduct of the audit, and also on the review of the Quarterly
Compliance Report by respective department heads/Company Secretary/CEo taken on record by

the Board of Directors of the Company, in my opinion, adequate system and processes and control
mechanism exist in the company to monitor and to ensure the compliance with applicable general

laws such as Labour Law and Environmental Laws.

I further report, that the compliance by the company of the applicable financial laws, Iike direct

and indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject to

review by statutory financial auditor and other designated professionals. However, as per Statutory

Auditor's Report, the company is under the process of delisting hence financial statement has not

been prepared as per IND-AS.

I further report, that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper

balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There were no

changes in the composition of the Board of Directors of the Company during the period under

review. Reconstitution of finance committee is done as per the act.



Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through. None of the members has given dissenting view as per
minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company that commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period, the Company has not undertaken any such specific
event / actions that can have a major bearing on the company's affairs in pursuance of the above

refered laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 'Annexure-A' and forms an

integral part ofthe report.

For Rakesh Agrawal & Co.

(Practicing Company )

(Prop: Agrawal)

-Y

q-\

Place: Kolkata
Date:30.06.2023

M No- F8792
CP No- 9014

UDIN: FOO87 92E000523 570

FCS:8792
CP :9014
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ANNEXURE - A" to the Secretarial Audit Report

To,
The Members,
BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED
(CIN: L5 1909W81982PLC03 5245)
5, SREE CHARAN SARANI, BALLY,

HOWRAH- 71I2OI, WEST BENGAL

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the Audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable

assurance about the correctness ofthe contents ofthe Secretarial records. The verification was

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe

that the process and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. Our audit was based on the examination of books and records maintained by the Company.

4. Our Audit examination was restricted to legal compliances of the applicable laws to be done by

the Company; we have not checked the operational and business aspects relating to the same.

5. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the Company as well as correctness of the values and figures reported in various
disclosures and returns as required to be submitted by the Company under the specified laws,

though we have relied to a certain extent on the information furnished in such returns.

6. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of

Iaws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

7. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and

standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the

verification of procedures on test and sample basis.

8. Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial, and operating controls,

there is an unavoidable risk that some misstatements or material non-compliances may not be

detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with audit

practices.

9. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

Company.

For Rakesh Agrawal & Co.

fPracticing Company Secretaries)

v

Place: Kolkata
Date: 30,06.2023

M No- F8792
CP No- 9014

o'
rO

.e

\o

014

g'92
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Ws li$v$ **ndui;ted the revin;rv of tho **nrplianss ul'lhe applicable $t*lultrry pruvisions and the adlwrcnce to

gngg corpnrars pnrelic*s by BALLY JfuTE COMPANY LIMIIED {herrinalt*r refen*d es 'the li$l€d

enrity'l,havingixllegisteredOffie*at5 IiKEf CHARAN SARANTBALLY HCIWRAH 7ll20l'
ScsrEurial Review was Etlndueted in a m&n$er that provided us a rensr:nahle bar*il for *valunting thc

corporate conduct*/st*tut*ry eornplianre* and rxpressing our opinion thErenn'

flase<l gn orlr verification nf rhs li*tcd cntiry"s hoeiks, PaFes, minutcrq hnnks, lorms and refi,rns filed antt

orher rscords rna.intainerl by the listed entity ard al*o tlrr inlbnuation prr:vidcr{ hy the listed *ntity' itr

$$i*ers. {Srnts and authuriz*d repre*entetivw during thc **ndsct of SeerctariaL R*vie,r'," l*s hereby report

rhnr iil 6ur opini*n, the listed $ntity lus, during the review p*riod covering the financial year ended on

March 31,2$23, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereur:derand alsa that thc lislcd cntity has

prnper Hoart{ processes and e*mpliance mechnnism in place to the extent, in thr maffler and srlhject tcr the

rep*fiing rnrde k*rsinafier:

t. lrl,'s. S. Dainriya & Associates, Practising Compary S**rcteriB$ have exanrined:

t:ll ,rll rhe dr:r:umgntr and rce*rd.r marle *vnilnhl* tn nne and explanatinn pr*vided h.v Mis. HALL.Y Jl.]T'F

COMP,4NY LII\{mfO ('\hE listEd entity"},

(tr} the filing*r submissions mtdc by tbe listtd ertity to the ete&k exchanges,

{c) weh*i?e of thtl li*ted entity,

{rt} any otherdocunrsnU fili**, a$ $uy be retevant, whicb has been relied upcl} to maks thir eertification,

tbr rhu year ended 3ld March" 20?3 {*Review Periad'} in r*specl ofcompliance wl$ t&c provisionx of:

{a) th* Securiti*s and f;xchange Bnarcl nf Indi* Act, l$Q? {-'S}:Hl Act'-} and the Regr:lation*, circulrrs-

guidelines isuuEd thereunden *ffI

{b) the .sacuritier Contm*ts {keg*laticn} Act, 1956 (*SCRA*), rule* made thcieunder and the

circulars, guidctrirres irisued thsreunder bythe Securities *nd Exchange Bo*rd *f lndia

76, Ashutosh Mukheriee Road, Kolkata- 700 025, Ph: +91-987431
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Email: sdalmiya"associates@gmail.cCIm. website: wwusdalmiyaassociate$.com



]'h6 sp*i:if?c l{egul,rfinnx. l hnsc prrrtieionx nnri the circttlarri guidelrnes iscrrst{ llrcrettnder, bate h**n

c'xsmined. ineludc;-
I

ia) Sseuritirr and Exehung* B*aird of India llisting Ohligntians *nd $isclosure R*quir*rnents) Rc6ulati*ns,

?0lS; {I(r{ &ttratt*d during the year uneler rcr"iex)

{h3 Securrtieg antl l{xchange lioar<l r:f lndin {lss*e of {:apital antl Disclorrure &*qrrirementrr} Regulatinn*,

}#l .1: (I{ot $ttra*tcd during tha rv-ear trnder md*tt}

lr:) Sscuritlsri *n,J exch;lrrg* Bc.rartl of 'Indiri {Subxtarrtial A*qui*itinn *f $h*res qrrd Tak*nversi Regulnti*n:-

2* I l; {?tint attracted during the }'€flr under revic*}

1rt) Securities *nel Exchangr B**rrl
iuring lbc yter under rerkn )

{r} lierurities and Exchafl&!. fi$erd *f India {slrurr: Bascl Employee Bcnt:fits and Swcat Equiry}
Rcgulalirrns. 201 l; {lriot sttrscted during the rear under rcvicw)

trf] Ser:urities and ,kxehange ll.nard of India (lrs*c ;rnd Li*ing rf l)*ht $ecuritirs) Itegulatinns, ?{x}l{; {Not
applbahlrl

i3il Securities and Exchange Bnlrd of lndir {lssue and Listing of Ni:n Cosvertiblc Sccuritie*}
Regrilntierns,2*2 I ; {l{rt *ppli*ubl*}

ilrr \p!'t.lIrr's rnd I:tclxrrtgc lirrurrl trl'lrtrli;r {}'nrhthitintr nt'Insiricr'lra<lrng} Hegrrlatinns 3{}t5; t$r*
nttrected tluring the 1'ear undcr revitrr)

{i} ,:ther rtgula!ions a* applicable and cir$ular# guid*lines issued thereunder;

anri based on rire sbs?e e)rarninatisn. I hcreby repom that. during rhe lt*vicw ileriod the complianue $tatu$ $f
thc liytcd cnti$. is ap;x*d*rl ax bcl*wl

Sr. No. V*rtirrrl*rx
$t*fur
{Ye#}!iol

Secretirrird $**aderds: vF(

Ther cornpliarrccs trf tlrc listeel entity
are in accordaacr rvith the applirablc
Sr*crr:r*rial Sraffler{i* {fifi) issu**l by
the Institutc r:f Corupany Sscre{*ries

ln&iu {lCSl}, n"q nstified by rhc

Ceulral fiovetrment under sectiun

I lS{ l{,} *f th* fompanier A*r, ?$13

arr* mandatrrrily applicable.

fomplinrrc*

a

Practieing Company

l.'r.rtrpl IEn

by

\,

\,

l.

Ikmark*

gud*u*



-{" ltt: xf t*,"'.iii r,'1,4. xgtsl ;rtitsx*, *vb***

('a3 **x*riti*r, a**
X1I5; {N*t **tlratl*tt

"lzaree b**n

D i**l*rler r* fi,*qui rem cnts) Itr:6lrlatilrn*,

1*"r3 *rr.*rrti** xxztl T.xxh*xg* Bo"trrl *t lndia {lnrir* *f {|.*pit*l nntl L}i*rlrxrr* t*qgirr::r:ent*} llegxNxti*n*,

l0I il: iNot attrarfcd during thc year undrr reviet'l

t*l *t:cx:rilit*san*{ f,xcharrg.' B*ard of ln<{ia (Sub:tantial .Ar:rluiniri*n of Shar** *xd Tlrk**verc} I{rgillat'i*nu,
lrl i I : {Xot stlracrcd during the 1'ear under revitw}

1ttrt ***tsritie* xxtX li,x*l:txrtg* t)*'*rtl d'ladrn lllwylw*k rtf' liecxritics) lti*gul*tir"*$- Xlitli {!1*t *ftru*tatl
tluring ltz* y*tzr utzdr*r r*tiewl

*l fiec*riti*x and b.yt;lze.wgt #*ard *t lndin tsbarc Bux*d Enrpl*1ee l3encfits antl $wcut Equit )
{le *trlat}*nri.2*21; ff$*t *Krx*t** $r.z*rrgth* 3**frr u***r r*rit\-\,?

tl'l \r:!'!lnlrcs ane I l-xe l:an4c Htrlrd nllnr{in {ls<rre anrl l.rstin{ rrl l}cht }iecrrnfler} l{rgulariirnt. J{ltlX; { a*ot

xyplirlll:fu|

iS) Sr'curtticr arrrl fxchangc Roartl of tndi:r (lrsue alrd l-isling ui' Nolr Couvertiblc Sccuriries)
*e gil'sti*n s,2t12 1 ; {fu *! xpplixxblxl

ii:r \.t'i:r!!firq :rnrJ lrrclt;rrlgc lltr:.rll r;l'lnr^li;r l1rtzltt*iti*n *t'Insiirl*r lrx<iingi k*gul;trinnr lillS; {I{*{
lrtractcd during the year undrr r*t'irrr)

r{alu* ilt

Jir. ki.
\.

I

\* cr etxri*l b**a*txy il. :

I'hrl ctsnryliiur*e* *f rh* lixt*tl *rtity
*rx itl *.t;c<1rd s** with lh* *pnli*;lbl*
Sserct.u'ial Sta.ncjanis {$S} issucd bv

V*rtirv**r*

v

1"

t**r*x

af I;E

hy ?rxt*ix*Ng (*mpxny

,-r'\\rpr l1:r\



?,

onJ lllalnfcmEncc and
lV*b*ite:

Thc Lirii{ril er:tity is

mai*taining a lbnetion*l
$'*hsite

Timely dissernination of the

d,pcrtnr*nf#in fnrmati$n nnder

a s*parat* ecrtian s$ thE

w{bsrte.

Web'links provided in annual

curpr)rutc gov{.:rflailce

urtJer R,;gul*tior 27t?1 i*t
irtcuralr and spr;cilic whi*h
re- clir*r;tti to tk* rr:lev*nl
dnr".uruer{s)/ r*ctiun of the

u'{:Lrsitc.

?rionc rrl the Dimctor{*} of th*
Comprny is,r xrc disqualified unt{er
*e*i*n l$& *t Crmp*rnics Act. t(ll-)
-. ^..-{:-,,..,,t l*., ir-., t;.,r",.t *^.:,,,. rrJ rl.r rrnrlu !.rraiJ,

5 b*ailx rel*tud tr)

lixted rrtitie* h*v* he*n *ramined
r*.r.t.:

c

I

a

,

(-

CIf NA

{a} lclentificxtisn *f
.sutrsidi*ry conrpcni*s

Adaptir*n u*d titxxly updatitn of
tbn Tsli*iext

r All applir:ablc p*licies undcr

SFIII Rcsulation$ arc

adopted with thc approval of'

hoard ui rlirestrtr* trf the

listed enl.ities

I All lhs poli*ius &r{3 in
cortformity tt'ith Sf.B,
Regulations and havc bir:ctr

revi*w*d & updated on time,
nlr p$r the

r*gr lation#circu lar#guidel ln

** i*suad by $lilJi

rnaterial

CO]!TLITD

hJA

tfrcI t.")

YES COMITLTEN

YHS co&ti,L*:r

,pt=
[':].sria*

ir



6.

7

U

8

ttr-

i

I

.t)

{b) Disrlosr:rs requireme*t of
mat**nl *s rr,sll *a other ruh*idi;niEs.

Prt*errsti$ff *f Do*um*:ntsl

'l'he lixte<I r:ntity is pre*ervi*rg and

nraifitsining rsilurds a# Fres$ribed
uniL'r $lilll lt*gularions rnel dispeisrl

of r*c*rds iili psr P*licy CIf

Prcscn'eti*a sf Docum*nls $nd

Archival poliey prescribrd undcr

SEBI L$Dfi. H.*gulntions, 3fl 1 5.

YES COMPLIED

? *r{*rm*nt:* f, valuq ticx:

The list€d rrtity has e*aducte<l

.pcrfornrance evaluation of thc Etiard,

lnilepcndent Directors and the

Commiuess at the start of cvcry
financial l,earrtluring the financial
yurr as prcs*riberl in SEBI

Rugulatioru".

YfiS i

I

i

t

il$MrtHI)

c{)MrI-irr.
0iunibus appr*v*l iras been

apprurctl by tirc autlit

lnkm plarr

cnmmittec and accordingly

tl?rt*a*tir:nrpal'ry

(ai Thc liricd cn{i{y bHs $bLrirrcd

prior rpproval ol' Aurlit C*mnritrce
tirl all relat,:d pafiy tmnsaction"s; ur

(b) 'l'hc lisiet{ entity has provitled
detailed r*aiions al*ng with
contirmatir;n whether dre

tran$actions

$'*r* s*lr**qu*lltly
approvcdlrutitietl/rcjected hy the

Audit Cornruitme, in case no prior
approval hss bcsn ohtained.

Thc list*d ffrity has pr$vided all rhs

rcquir*d discl*sure{siuudm
Rcgulation 3ti along wirh Schedule

Ill *t'SEEI L"ODR Rcgr:laticn,;, 3015

rvithin rhc time limit^s prcscribctl

there und*r.

$r YLIil!i**lo*ure rf
inftrrnati*n:

$*s

l&el*t * & 7 nr *y T r a n*n *lis n* : l',HS

r.*M?t..]'trn

g*tkaI'*/,
*



.t-

(-

t1

*rry,

*b>c,r''rr;rj

rc4t

.C rrm yli :r nr t'5 rcl*t L''l t t3

per ST,131{iru*ltar

1\tr

lStlr

r*xigln*\t**. hw i*xtt*tl the

a$dir

*r

&

b*t*r*a*dir.*r

?*A

q1

rnt {&l t t- r\t.l rtltI l,tt:lJ1',rx! ii

{*MT?LLL1*VfiC,

t*A ?{A

l' r *hibi*i.*n *t inxiqi*r "T r x$ingt

:i"ht: Ii*tt* *$rily i$ ix **stpNian**
rvirlr itegrrlrrritrn ii5 ) &-1({r} SFI}l

ll'rohibitiorr rrl' [nuider Tratling]

trte tsuiaticns,l{l I 5.

fi. A,r;*i*t*x tnk*n by -tfiIll *r
Exehxr*y*{ilrif *rryt

N* a*tusn{r,} lt:aa b**n tuk n x6ttin*l

th* |i*ts* e$ti{}iit,r pr*rxoh:r*l

rlir*,;t*r*i xr:,b*i&i*rt*x eirher h1' $EBl
,r:r by fr\x*k Exc,l**g*t; {i*cluding
****r \fuq $taml*r:cl *p*r'arr*g
llrocedurcs irsucd Lry Sfilll rhrotlgh

r lri(rr.rs crrcullls) under Sti13l

Regrrl;iriun:, .:ntl circulaffi;guidcIin,"'s

r;sutd tltrrcunrier exccpt as providcd

*cz** r sr."p*r *t*, pr.r z gw"ph b*r*,trz.

,1t \* *t*.

#*a*xr*

{\'*af?i*l k&|.
.&*nxxrkc sf by
1' r **tit:irug t*xz1l*r*y

whils xn *.ut?-ii*r

ii. lt thc uuditr:r hes rcsignc<i

uttql 45 dayx tr*wz th* *"n*. *f
*t a {rn*x*i l

.e##w



fi"rr surh quartr*r *s rvetl as the

n*xt q*a*nr; *r

iii" ii rhc uuriit$r iras sign*d

rhc limited retisrv/ audit

repsrt tirr rhe tirst

resignutiun, has . isrucd the

limit*d rEvie*d audit roport

fbr drc lnx nf such

yrsi{r a.i

rudit repurt Ibr xu:h
y*ar-

i. Il"*p*rting of tr*cerns h,v

Auditnr with r*cpect to the

{i'-l:a.**rx *t i}

rhu auditor

li:;ted rntlly/itf
**,"*idiary lst th*
{*mtnitr.*c;

*ueh

mntcrial

*f
('

L

n. lir care of a*1; cottccrtr with

rire lran:rgenrcnt of thc listed

*rrt irv,'nraleria I

slich a* nun-xvail*bllity
t*t'armation,i n*ac*opcraliein

hy lllc maragement which

hnn hamp;rcd thc audit
pr"{i$ds$, tlrs atsdit*r |tou
ap;:r*a*bed the Chaimran of
tli* Audir Committce of
lis.trd entity i:nd &e A*dit
C$:n$ritter *h*il r$e,riv*

ctrfrcern dirertly and

immediatcly without

specifically rvai;ing for thr
qur*trlrly Audit Cumrnitls{l

mretingx.

b. In ease thr auditnr
prtrposs$ to rcrign, all

,,}

&
$s&*" *.

3

NA

Ltlrlt:t:rns rtilh r*spcct tr

It

**h*r ***&iti**tx t* aadi**r



iuith relsran{ dr:cur:r*ntx ha*

lre*n hrought t* the nntic* uf
thr Aut{ie Cr:rurittee. In

ilt)11-

ini*rmati*n I

f$mpa$y

infbrn:*d
, the auditor

llom the

hi$
tlt* Aurlit

{r,mr:iNtcs thc dcrailn r:f
i tt {iltrrtut iotr tc:rplanatiun

sought and not pmviele*l bv
th{r lnanag*mrrto ss

appli*ahle.

e. Th* Axdit fun:mitrer I
#*arr"l at Sire*t*rs" ;lr the

sa$e may be, d*liberated rn
{hc rriattcr on rceeipr nf sush

intarazalian liorn the auditor
relating to tlr{: nrnposal to

rccign ;rs rrr*n{i$ned abt:x,e

and communicate its virws to
llrc nlnnageiltcnt and the

xirdit*r,

ii. llisclrirner iri cas* ol' nrlr-
r-'J J i p:. ir l' ir, lirntration :

l'he *udrt*r lr*"r provided
appropriiltc disclainrsr in it*
auilit r$part, *,iriclr i* iu
a*rurdancc u,itlr the

StanrianJs of Autlirirg as

lpecifi*cl by iCAt rlIFS.A, in
case where thE listsd
irt malerid subsidiary
pr*vid*ri i*tirrnlatirr* &$

required by tlre autliror"

I

c has n*t

J lllre listsd entity 1 its n:atsrial
subsidiary has obrained
*n{nrmatinn frcun thE Auditor
up*n rrl*ign;rtior:, in th*
li:srti:l as sprlcit'lrrl in
Ann*,1(*ru- A in SIL,*I

C:ircul*r
{-"tR f er ffi c.MI) I I t t4J?t1 I I

I{A

.1.

NA

L
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October,2tll9.datird I

tlr* sbove Begulationr and sircularsl guldelirres issrted thele

fr

No

TypE

al
Artia
n

s/

rf

trA

&etall*

of
Violatio

Conrplianre

Requireme

ni

{Regulation
t/
circularsf

guidelinel

including
rnrifir
ctaut*\

{h} rh* lirteri entl& hac taken the touowing action$

Complianee

fiequirerne
nt

Iftesulation

si

circular*f

guideline."

irrcli:ding
( n o. i{i.

clausei

$ 
h*u*rptiwt*& l,imitstitn and tr*vicrr:

nre

a*llrt:ntir:ity of dirr:urnsrrt{i and infomration &rmi*hed
cntity.

exantrnation of rclcv;rnt t'locunrrntr and infirrmatinn. 'Ihi*

5r.

Ng

Datails

al
Vinlatio
n

0bservatisrl

r/ Remarkr

of the

Practicing

Company

Sscrstary

I

:

.

Manageme

nt

Responre

ks

fine
Amou

nt

llernar

]. \trrs lTave n*t vsrified llt* eorrertnes* anil uppmpri*lsne&l of finansial Recrrrds urd E*oks of Accr.rurrlri tf
thc lixcd cnlit;v.

Fine

Amou

n?

Manageme

Sesp*nse

nt

Hemar

to
Deviatio

n5

*ctio
n

Take

nbY

Regr.llatio

Circular

n/

hl$.

Artip
n

Take

nhY

ft*gulatio

Circular

n/

No.

Baviatlo

n5
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ANntE,xr,l izi -V

S. *almtyx &,4ss *cixtes
C*nrpanj, S**'*t$riss

Errs*ring tho eJigibiliry sf tbr *e nglainnn*nt I c*ntinuiry nf eywy Dire*tnr *n t&* Suard i* {m r*rpensibiliry of the
m{flagem$fli rrf the C:onrpany, {"htr respc**ibitiy is to $spfi*$s un opinioa es t&e$s baned sll qur verifiedi;. This
eertiticate is neilher $rI s$sur&flqe as to thc futurc viabiliS *f t** *rmpany mr nf *rE *lti*ie*ey ur effecdvcncrir wirh
r.vhich tbe rrsnssamert kss ctladustsd the atltirs uf the Companlr.

f $ar $, $otmilx & As*ori*r*r

N*. b'13,**{t
{lilP F,in. IS6*}
fe*r Revien ftr- l{o. l}dS/?S}}

&'1a*.*; htxlk*tt*
*7st*: 12-115,2{173

lib15 ; l; {r, Z{}4 {t {llrlt?.}fi&1 q

.lf\lrru$*L Y Par* fi eku$t:
arrtl ?$l5l

To'
The Mrmb$x sf
Bnlty Jute fompmy Limitd
5. Srce Chrrun Snrani,
Bally, Howralh 7ll20l

I hav* exrrnined the retevnnt regisrers, rccords, fonx*, tuturus a&d *iisslo*uffi$ rEEsivqd frcm tfie Siraeta* of Belly Jute
C*mpnny Limi*ed having C** LSf ${S111?fSlfLC{B$l*S a*d having regiater,ed offic* ot 5 Srss (h$ran furani B*lly
Hax:tth-?i lltll {h*einalt€r re}trrcd is fl$ {ths $omp*ny'}. productxl h+fnre nrrc hy th* {}ornp*ny f*r *he pqporc df
isxuing fliis L:Edifieete- in &ceordaxee *itk fi.egulafion ${5} rssd wilh $*licd*:lil Y Far*.fr $u* *l**se l{4i} *f the

$ecurities Excha*ge S*anl of ldis &i$ila Obligsti*ns sil* Ilisr.ksum kcquirrm*ntr; R.cgulntionq !S15.

ln my npinion anrl kr ths h*s* nf rny iulbnrstinn antt cccording to the wrifrcntisax {icchr<ting Oircctcrs ltlxulifieati*n
Humbsr {l}lN} st*tus at the pCIrtxl (nrww"mc*.grrvJn} as considercd nece*s*ry snd explsnotioxs fumi*ked to me &y thc
tlompilny & iu ollicem. I herehy certifu that none of &e Uirecrorr on thc Board nf thc (,lrmprny as stared bclow tirr rhc
Iiinanci*I Year e*ding on 3ld M'e{eh, !*3} hov* bst*l &bsffidordfuepalified ftom being appornted or crlntiruing as
Direcr*rs af,caxpo4i** by rhe $*mrritiex snd Exrhxngs Baard ef India, Mid$try of Corpmere Aflirirs- Kolk*k or eny
such other Statulory Authority.

)

Sr \lme
\ r hc*1itl

fi

l,io. I}13
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frt{? t;l {}4'lll.'?{ll5
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